
 
 
 
 

City of Woodstock 
Office of the City Manager 

Phone (815) 338-4301   Fax (815) 334-2269 
citymanager@woodstockil.gov 

www.woodstockil.gov 
121 W. Calhoun Street          Roscoe C. Stelford III  
Woodstock, Illinois 60098         City Manager 
 

                       WOODSTOCK CITY COUNCIL 
City Council Chambers 

November 4, 2014 
7:00 p.m. 

 
                                 

Any Person Wishing to Address the City Council 
Must Approach the Podium, be Recognized by the 

   Mayor, and Provide Their Name and Address for the Record 
   

The proceedings of the City Council meeting are being audio-recorded only 
to aid in the preparation of the Minutes and are not retained as part of the 
permanent records of the City. 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
ROLL CALL: 
            
A. FLOOR DISCUSSION:   
     
 
Anyone wishing to address the Council on an item not already on the agenda may do 
so at this time. 

1. Public Comments 
2. Council Comments    

                   
CONSENT AGENDA: 
(NOTE: Items under the consent calendar are acted upon in a single motion.  There is 
no separate discussion of these items prior to the Council vote unless: 1) a Council 
Member requests that an item be removed from the calendar for separate action, or 2) 
a citizen requests an item be removed and this request is, in turn, proposed by a 
member of the City Council for separate action.) 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Woodstock City Council  
November 4, 2014 
Page Two 

 
B.        MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS:              
            October 2, 2014 City Council Strategic Planning Workshop 
 October 21, 2014 Regular City Council Meeting 
 October 21, 2014 Executive Session 
  
  
C.        WARRANTS:   3637     3638     MFT#538 
 

 
 
D. MINUTES AND REPORTS:  
 September 8, 2014 Historic Preservation Commission Meeting 
 October 6, 2014 Historic Preservation Commission Meeting 
  
    
E. MANAGER'S REPORT NO. 34 
 

1. Board and Commission Appointments - Approval of the appointment 
of Roger Zawacki to the Opera House Advisory Board. 
 

2. Traffic Ordinance -  Approval of an Ordinance amending Section 
5.3.7 of the Woodstock City Code deleting the “No Parking During 
Designated Hours” designation from portions of Blakeley Avenue and 
Muriel, Mitchell, and Gould Streets and adding a “No Parking Place” in 
front of 327 E. Jackson Street. 
 

3. IDOT Maintenance and Local Improvements Resolution - Approval 
of a Resolution pertaining to maintenance work and local improvements 
within a State right-of-way during calendar years 2015 and 2016. 

 
4. Façade Improvement Program Request – Approval of allocation of 

$1,200 in Façade Improvement funds for 116-120 N. Benton Street for 
the entranceway resurfacing. 

 
5. Property Tax Estimate – Adoption of a Resolution formally 

estimating the dollar amount for 2014 property taxes. 
 
6. Woodstock Celebrates, Inc. Agreement – Consideration and approval 

authorizing the Mayor and City Clerk to execute an agreement between 
the City of Woodstock and Woodstock Celebrates, Inc. to acquire the 
rights for a marketing campaign. 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(34a) 
 
 
(34b)(Doc.1) 
 
 
 
 
 
(34c)(Doc.2) 
 
 
 
(34d) 
 
 
 
(34e)(Doc.3) 
 
 
(34f) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Woodstock City Council  
November 4, 2014 
Page Three 

 
 
 

 
FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
 
ADJOURN  

 
NOTICE: In compliance with the Americans With Disabilities Act (ADA), this 
and all other City Council meetings are located in facilities that are physically 
accessible to those who have disabilities.  If additional reasonable 
accommodations are needed, please call the City Manager’s Office at 815/338-
4301 at least 72 hours prior to any meeting so that accommodations can be made. 

 
 



MINUTES 
WOODSTOCK CITY COUNCIL 

STRATEGIC PLANNING WORKSHOP 
October 2, 2014 
Stage Left Café 

 
A Special Meeting of the Woodstock City Council was called to order by Mayor Brian Sager at 
4:00PM on Thursday, October 2, 2014 at the Stage Left Café.   
 
A roll call was taken.   
  
COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT:  Mark Saladin, RB Thompson, Maureen Larson, Julie Dillon, 
Joe Starzynski, Mayor Brian Sager.  Councilman Mike Turner arrived at 4:10PM 
 
COUNCIL MEMBERS ABSENT:  None 
 
STAFF PRESENT:  City Manager Roscoe Stelford, Director of Public Works Paul Ruscko, Finance 
Director Paul Christensen, Assistant Director of Public Works Jeff Van Landuyt, Grant Writer Terry 
Willcockson, and Executive Assistant/Chief Deputy Clerk Cindy Smiley 
 
OTHERS PRESENT:  None 
 
Mayor Sager noted that the purpose of the meeting was a City Council Workshop to discuss three 
specific items in more depth:  The City’s Marketing/Branding Plan, The Old Courthouse, and the 
Prevailing Wage Act.  He stated that the goal is to come to some degree of resolution on these topics or 
to come to an agreement to move forward in such a manner to be able to provide staff with direction. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
1. Marketing/Branding 
Mayor Sager reminded those present that at the last City Council Workshop, it was agreed that the City 
would work on a marketing program which would benefit the City of Woodstock, the community, and 
our local businesses and organizations.  At that meeting, the “Woodstock Celebrates” concept 
developed for Woodstock Celebrates, Inc. was discussed and a presentation of that program was made 
by Michael Stanard.  Mayor Sager noted that Woodstock Celebrates, Inc. is an organization that was 
founded in large part by Councilman RB Thompson.   
 
Following this meeting and the presentation by Mr. Stanard, it was agreed that Staff would work with 
members of Woodstock Celebrates to see if there was a possibility of using that concept, namely the 
logo and the slogan, in the City’s branding campaign, working together to promote various facets of 
Woodstock. 
 
Mayor Sager noted that Woodstock Celebrates, Inc. applied for copyrights on the logo and the slogan 
and has received a copyright on the logo itself, but not on the slogan, “Woodstock Celebrates.”   He 
stated that it is his understanding that WCI could not obtain a copyright on the slogan because it is too 
generic.  He stated that it is his feeling that the logo is not an absolute necessity and that efforts could 
move forward with WCI for shared use of the slogan by both WCI and the City for its marketing 
program.  He further stated that the City Council should decide if they wish to pursue the “Woodstock 
Celebates” slogan.  If not, then they need to determine the direction in which to proceed. 



Woodstock City Council 
October 2, 2014 

Page 2 of 10 
 

 
Mayor Sager noted that Councilman Turner has met with Gunnar Gitlin, President of the WCI Board 
and asked for an update of that meeting.   
 
M. Turner stated that approximately two weeks ago, as a representative of the City, he met with 
Gunnar Gitlin and Michael Standard, informing them that he was not in a position to make any 
definitive decisions or to negotiation on behalf of the City.  He stated that it was his desire as that 
representative to move the talks between the two groups along.  He noted that Mr. Gitlin was 
representing his own interests as President of WCI but also a broad set of interests of the other 
members of WCI.  He stated that the question is “can we align the goals of the two groups and come to 
a point were the two groups can support one another’s objectives.” 
 
M. Turner indicated that Mr. Gitlin raised some items that WCI would like to get out of the 
collaboration.  He further stated that he communicated that the City should have oversight and input on 
the campaign over and above WCI and that the City should have unencumbered use of the slogan.  Mr. 
Turner also discussed a public/private partnership where another private entity made up of 
representatives appointed by WCI and the City would execute and have complete control of the 
campaign with funds coming from the City and possibly other sources. 
 
M. Turner indicated that the WCI Board met this afternoon and came to the consensus that they would 
like more details but are willing to engage in further discussion.  It is Mr. Turner’s wish to see the 
discussion move forward quickly which would allow the Council to make a decision quickly.  He 
stated that he informed Mr. Gitlin that the City Council would discuss the matter further at this 
Workshop. 
 
To summarize, M. Turner stated that there is interest on the part of WCI and that there is interest in 
further discussion of the matter but nothing concrete. He noted that the decision is whether the two 
entities can come together to both use the slogan to the benefit of Woodstock.  He feels that WCI 
should be able to use the slogan any way they wish.    He further suggested the creation of a separate 
entity consisting of members from both organizations plus an outside party agreed upon by both 
groups.  This group would oversee the funds and approve the campaign.  He stated that the City would 
offer support and money and WCI would offer the slogan and the logo.  Following discussion, there 
was no consensus on this approach. 
 
In response to a question from RB Thompson, R. Stelford stated that the City Attorney would have a 
role to make sure that the project was structured appropriately. 
 
In response to a question from Mayor Sager as to the tenor of WCI concerning working with the City 
and Mr. Thompson’s individual position on this matter, RB Thompson stated that the purpose of WCI 
is to promote the historic aspects of Woodstock.  He noted that the City recognized one historic aspect 
in the recognition of the 130th anniversary of the City Band.  He further stated that WCI is working on 
developing a detailed calendar of other events that can be celebrated in subsequent years. He noted that 
marketing is a tertiary goal of WCI.  In response to a question from Mayor Sager as to the group’s 
perspective on WCI’s unencumbered use of “Woodstock Celebrates,” and the City doing a marketing 
component for the City using the slogan and the logo, with these two fitting together, Mr. Thompson 
stated he feels that the City should look for a new slogan with a new verb. 
 



Woodstock City Council 
October 2, 2014 

Page 3 of 10 
 

Discussion followed of the use of “Woodstock Celebrates” by both groups and how this could support 
WCI.  M. Turner stated that no one would take the entity name but that the City would just use the 
slogan to build the city up.   He stated that everyone thinks this is an effective way to promote 
Woodstock.  RB Thompson stated that many feel that this could lead to confusion. 
 
Peter Carroll, attorney and treasurer for WCI,  joined the discussion noting that the Board met this 
afternoon.  M. Turner noted that he and Mr. Carroll just received an email from Mr. Gitlin.  It stated 
that the WCI board made a motion that the Board move forward with discussions with an authorized 
representative of the City regarding collaboration between the City and WCI.  In response to a request 
from M. Turner to characterize the feelings of the WCI Board, Mr. Carroll stated they are willing to 
talk.  He stated that the groups may be able to work something out but it is certainly something they are 
not going to just give away wholesale.  He noted that this is something the City clearly wants and the 
WCI Board is willing to talk. 
 
Mayor Sager asked for comments from other members of the Council. 
 
M. Saladin noted that he appreciates the fact that WCI likes the name but stated that if something 
cannot be worked out soon and the process seems too drawn-out and cumbersome, perhaps it is time to 
walk away.  He stated that if the City has to give up the name in order to get complete control that is 
acceptable to him because the City needs a marketing plan that gives the City complete control to use 
when and how it wishes.  In response to a question from Mayor Sager about what he would consider an 
acceptable timeframe, M. Saladin stated that the marketing plan is a big component of economic 
development and feels that this issue should be settled within no more than 60 days. 
 
J. Starzynski agreed, stating that the City is being held hostage over a word and a logo.  He noted that 
the slogan and logo are great but wonders why the City is stuck on that, stating that the City could 
come up with its own logo and slogan.  He further stated that he does not feel a committee is needed as 
the City also has an Economic Development Department. 
 
J. Dillon agreed but expressed her disappointment, stating that both groups seem to want to promote 
Woodstock. 
 
M. Larson stated that she also is disappointed.  It is her opinion that the use of the slogan by both 
entities would strengthen both, while WCI seems to feel that the City’s use would weaken them, which 
was never the intent.  She feels that the Council always viewed this as a way to build up both WCI and 
the City. She, too, stated she feels that if WCI is not interested in seriously exploring the possibilities, 
she is at the point of “fish or cut bait.” 
 
RB Thompson stated that he feels it is too complex to have a third party (a separate body) and the 
process needs to be simplified. 
 
P. Carroll wished to point out that RB Thompson does not speak for the WCI Board and that the 
motion cited earlier points to WCI’s willingness to continue discussions.    In response, Mayor Sager 
stated that we cannot just continue to discuss, however.  He noted that the City has determined that it 
wishes to move forward with a marketing program and this process has ended up stagnated. 
 
M. Turner believes that the discussion can be completed and an agreement reached in 30-60 days, 
noting that great efforts have been made over the past six months to get it done.  He noted that it 



Woodstock City Council 
October 2, 2014 

Page 4 of 10 
 

remains his view and that of M. Larson that this is one of the best marketing campaigns he has ever 
seen.  Further, he stated he does not believe in the City’s Economic Development Department running 
this campaign, but rather an outside entity that has the ability to facilitate the program.  He noted that 
the City would provide the funds and WCI would give unencumbered use of the slogan and logo.  He 
further stated that this third party entity could also solicit funds, making this a public/private 
partnership which will provide more flexibility.  He stated that whatever is decided, this marketing plan 
should not be run like a governmental entity but should be run like a private business running a 
promotion. 
 
Mayor Sager noted that today’s discussion should be about whether we wish to move forward with 
WCI to utilize that slogan and logo and what timeframe are we willing to implement in order to 
accomplish this. 
 
M. Turner feels a 30-60 day timeframe would be appropriate. 
 
RB Thomson stated that he feels there should be a budget item and a bidding process seeking a 
marketing professional's services to create the campaign and perhaps “Woodstock Celebrates” could be 
part of that campaign.  He noted that Mr. Stanard has presented his ideas, but feels that the City needs 
to put this out for bid. 
 
Mayor Sager stated that at this point we need to decide if we wish to continue discussions concerning 
collaboration between the City of Woodstock and WCI relative to this type of effort and for what 
period of time.  He asked if the process could be concluded by October 31. 
 
M. Turner stated he feels that a conceptual agreement could be completed and presented to the Council 
at the first meeting in November. 
 
It was the consensus that M. Turner continue to work with the WCI Board with the intent of presenting 
a conceptual agreement to the Council at the first meeting in November. M. Turner stated, however, 
that in his mind, this is not date specific should a short time more be needed to complete the 
discussions.   
 
M. Saladin noted that he is willing to move forward if there has been substantial progress. 
 
P. Carroll noted that, in his opinion, it makes things simpler if there is a concrete proposal, as the WCI 
Board cannot act on informal offers.  He requested that the Council give them concrete options and 
choices.  
 
Mayor Sager stated that he is not interested in the logo but wishes to have unencumbered use of the 
slogan for marketing purposes. 
 
M. Turner stated that representatives of the two entities need to get together to hammer this out.  
Mayor Sager noted that they should craft language that would place an offer in writing stating what the 
City of Woodstock would like to have unencumbered use of “Woodstock Celebrates” for marketing 
purposes and would be willing to protect the use of that phrase relative to the WCI Board’s use with 
regard to historic activities.  In other words, the language would make it clear that the City is not 
getting involved in their efforts. 
 



Woodstock City Council 
October 2, 2014 

Page 5 of 10 
 

M. Larson confirmed that this would mean that both entities would have unencumbered use. 
 
P. Carroll noted that if the City wants something, they must give something and that, thus far, all he has 
heard is taking. 
 
M. Turner responded that the Council is currently discussing the City’s use and that the language must 
be framed to be acceptable to both parties. 
 
Mayor Sager asked what the financial parameters would be.  M. Turner stated that is unknown at this 
time, but G. Gitlin has shown some support and we should ask ourselves how much we are willing to 
offer.  Noting that he is not ruling anything out, M. Turner suggested that some office space could be 
offered.   
 
Mayor Sager noted he is willing to consider an initial up-front fee but is not willing to consider 
anything on an annual basis in terms of licensing.  M. Larson stated she agrees there should be no long-
term support.  Noting that he is fine with an initial payment, M. Saladin stated that all marketing plans 
have a life and a death. 
 
The Mayor asked for the Council’s views of whether they would consider an initial payment. 
 
J. Dillon stated she is willing to consider this but is also open to creative ways of compensating WCI. 
 
M. Larson stated this may be saving funds that would have to be spent developing another slogan.  
 
Mayor Sager asked whether Council would consider an initial payment of $10,000 with a possible 
additional opportunity for in-kind support such as office space. 
 
J. Starzynski stated this is very generous and he would support this offer but no more than this. 
 
M. Saladin indicated his support. 
 
M. Larson supports $10,000 but no more. 
 
M. Turner indicated his support 
 
J. Dillon supported a one-time payment of $10,000. 
 
RB Thompson indicated his support. 
 
Mayor Sager confirmed that everyone is comfortable with these parameters and that the City will work 
between now and October 31 to come to an agreement with Woodstock Celebrates, Inc. 
 
In response to a question from Mayor Sager, P. Carroll stated this is an excellent start. 
 
Mayor Sager stated the City will try to further the dialog as quickly as possible and bring something to 
Council at the first meeting in November. 
 



Woodstock City Council 
October 2, 2014 

Page 6 of 10 
 

R. Stelford confirmed with Council that the $10,000 would go against the $80,000 budgeted for the 
marketing program.  All were in agreement. 
 
2. Old Courthouse Project 
Noting that Council is aware of the status of the project, Mayor Sager stated that the purpose of this 
discussion is to talk about where the project is headed.   
 
He reminded Council that underlying this project was two possibilities: 

1) The City could continue on as owner of the building 
2) The City could do another round of RFPs with the idea of turning it over into private hands. 

 
The Council elected to pursue number two and see what ideas were brought forth.  Two proposals were 
initially received in response to the RFP and were vetted by the Review Committee.  He stated that one 
proposal was for both buildings and had a residential component and the other was for the Sheriff’s 
House only, expanding the restaurant that is currently located in that building.  Subsequently two 
additional proposals were received. 
 
In the interim other things have come up, including the leasing of the restaurant space in the Old 
Courthouse to the Public House.  Another idea that has surfaced is looking to the Courthouse for use as 
a municipal facility for the City Administration and other offices. 
 
Mayor Sager noted that the purpose of the conversation today is not to discuss the on-going 
improvements, but rather to have a visionary discussion of where to go from here. 
 
In response to a question from M. Saladin, Mayor Sager reviewed that the four proposals were from the 
Texas developer, the Creperie, the School Proposal, and the proposal from the McHenry County 
Foundation. 
 
M. Larson, Chairperson of the Old Courthouse Review Committee, noted that while very hopeful and 
interesting, the proposal from the School would need to be fleshed out with much more information 
provided.  She also feels that Council should discuss whether this would be an appropriate use for that 
building.  She feels that the first step is to determine that before seriously reviewing the School 
Proposal. 
 
J. Starzynski questioned the financial feasibility of this proposal. 
 
RB Thompson and M. Saladin are not interested in placing a school in the Old Courthouse. 
 
J. Dillon was hoping for more for the building. 
 
Mayor Sager stated that he believes whatever use must have public access.  He feels that the courtroom 
should be a facility that the public can use.  He also still is in support of a restaurant in the lower level 
and feels that a school could preclude these things. 
 
M. Turner is not supportive of the School Proposal. 
 
It was the consensus of the City Council not to proceed with review of the School Proposal. 
 



Woodstock City Council 
October 2, 2014 

Page 7 of 10 
 

Mayor Sager noted that the Council purposely avoided previously discussing what they wanted in the 
building to see what kind of ideas and proposals came in, hoping to solicit interesting ideas.  He further 
stated that now Council must talk about the ideas that they would like to see in that building and asked 
for Council’s thoughts on possible uses for the building. 
 
J. Starzynski stated that he would like to see the building used for cultural purposes, noting that this 
can change an area.  He noted that there already is a strong cultural base and sees it as a cultural center.  
He would also like to see a brewery or brew pub in the building. 
 
M. Larson stated that the main thing for her is that the building becomes a vital part of the Square to 
bring people in.  She noted that a craft brewer would be a huge regional draw.  She further noted that 
business owners want to see a flow of people that might not be here already. She stated that there 
should be two restaurants, including one in the Sheriff’s House.  M. Larson stated that the Council 
should decide what it wants and what is the best way to make this happen.  She is hopeful that the City 
will find this out through the TAP process.  The next step would be to see if there are people who were 
interested in investing in this vision.  It is her opinion that it is time to take a more focused approach. 
 
A discussion ensued of the economic viability of the City remaining as landlord and maintaining the 
building. 
 
M. Turner stated that there is a strong argument for the City continuing to own the building. He stated 
the most important thing is not the use of the building but the impact that use has on the building and 
the Square.  He further noted that the project must be viable and that the building must be maintained, 
which is another reason for the City maintaining control and ownership of the building.  He suggested 
investigating how other communities have brought investors to similar projects.  M. Turner stated he 
would like to see multiple restaurants and would like to see the City reach out to brewers to see if they 
are interested.  He wants to see the Old Courthouse become a regional destination to draw people to the 
Square and is open to ownership and lease but that the project should be done quickly. 
 
M. Turner also stated he is an advocate of moving City Hall to the Old Courthouse which would be an 
evolutionary event in the City.  Noting that City Hall does not have to take up the whole building, the 
remaining space could house other uses.  In response to a question from J. Dillon as to what would 
happen to the current City Hall, M. Larson stated that it is more suited to condos.  J. Dillon noted, 
however, that Emerson Lofts, which was the former historic Woodstock Typewriter building, is not 
doing well which could be problematic.  She also feels that City Hall should remain a public use 
building. 
 
J. Dillon stated that the building is beautiful and needs people in it.  She supports a public mixed use, 
including a brew pub and music. 
 
M. Saladin stated that he likes the ideas he has heard thus far, but wants to make sure they do not 
burden a Council in 30 years should a private person not have the means to maintain the building, thus 
creating the same situation in which this Council finds itself.  He further stated that he has no problem 
in keeping it in the City’s stewardship and agrees with targeted marketing.  He does not mind a 
residential component.   
 
M. Saladin further stated that he believes the RFP process is leading the City to the conclusion that a 
single private owner may not be viable due to cost.  He noted that looking to the future he can still see 



Woodstock City Council 
October 2, 2014 

Page 8 of 10 
 

the Sheriff’s House as a separate building with a separate entrance which could perhaps lead to 
revisiting the Sheriff’s House RFP again. 
 
M. Saladin stated that the City must take the initiative to market the space, noting that more targeted 
marketing should be done on the first floor as the second floor consists mainly of the Old Courtroom. 
 
RB Thompson discussed using the building as an incubator.  He stated that he also would prefer to see 
a regional draw and believes the brewery would be a good idea. 
 
J. Starzynski stated that if the proposals are not what we want, he would be supportive in remaining as 
steward of the building. 
 
M. Turner noted that the Old Courthouse is a wonderful historic building.  He further stated that the 
real estate market will not stay down forever and that the Old Courthouse has great potential. 
 
Mayor Sager stated he would like to see good, solid public uses in the building promoting a lot of 
traffic.  He would like to see businesses with a cultural aspect such as a restaurant, a gallery, small 
business incubator, community service organization shared office space, and a community room.   He 
is not supportive of a residential component as it carves too much out of the building. 
 
Mayor Sager further stated that he is strongly coming to the conclusion that the City should remain the 
steward of the building in perpetuity.  He noted that he is willing to look at certain municipal functions 
moving from City Hall to the Old Courthouse and that he believes the community has a vision of a mix 
of uses in the building.  He also stated that he is very willing to look at a brew pub but believes that 
they need a lot of space which may be prohibitive. 
 
Mayor Sager stated that he would like to focus on two areas in order to take a step forward: 
 

1)  Is there a consensus that the Council would not object if the City were to become the long-
term owner/steward of the building? 
 
It was the consensus that Council is supportive of this possibility. 

 
2) Is there consensus for the mixed use of the building as long as the uses maintain public access 

and draw traffic and people to the Square?  In addition, this could be a combination of some 
business/office space and municipal services. 

 
  It was the consensus that Council is supportive of this idea with the following comments: 
 
  Councilmembers do not wish to end up with several little spaces that do not draw people. 
  It was the consensus that the building would need an anchor which would generate the primary  
  economic activity. 
 
Discussion followed of the need to develop categories of desired tenants, such as brewpubs, and then 
possible contacts within those categories.  It was also felt that staff should begin to look at the 
framework of the uses in terms of rent and what the limitations might be on certain businesses.  M. 
Larson noted that the TAP process might help with this, noting that they might move in parallel. 
 



Woodstock City Council 
October 2, 2014 

Page 9 of 10 
 

M. Larson noted that the submitters of the Busse proposal were never given a definite answer and she 
would like to get back to them.  It was the consensus of the Council that they are not ready at this time 
to give this proposal a firm “yes” or “no.”  Mayor Sager asked that they be reminded that Council and 
the Review Committee would entertain additional information. 
 
In response to a question from Mayor Sager, while Council was not opposed to exploring the 
possibility of moving City Hall to the Old Courthouse or of moving some municipal offices there, it 
was the consensus to explore other options which would make the Old Courthouse a more vibrant 
destination in the Square.  It was the consensus that this idea could be revisited at a later date should no 
“destination” uses materialize. 
 
R. Stelford noted that staff will begin working on these ideas right away, exploring not only brewpubs, 
but also making a list of what could potentially go into the building making it a draw.  Staff will also 
share any potential problems that, in reality, could present any hurdles. 
 
Following a discussion of the demolition of the addition, it was the consensus of Council that, as this 
could not be completed before the Public House moves in and it is not critical, it would not be 
undertaken at this time. 
 
3. Prevailing Wage Act 
M. Turner noted that it is not his intent to encumber staff or vendors or to require any additional work, 
but that he wishes to have an idea of what the impact of the Prevailing Wage Act is to the City and its 
taxpayers.  He feels that there is a lack of information out in the public concerning this Act.  He is 
requesting to have information provided to the Council on a quarterly basis as to what the additional 
cost of projects are as a result of having to comply with the Prevailing Wage Act. 
 
Mayor Sager stated that he understands and agrees that it is important to know the impact.  He also 
noted that the Council must realize that the City is not the body that makes the decisions concerning 
the Prevailing Wage Act.  He invited anyone that is interested in change concerning this matter to go to 
Springfield to lobby their position.  He also noted that the City also continues to do this at the COG 
level and invited anyone who wishes to do so to attend the MCOG meetings and get involved in that 
way. 
 
Mayor Sager further stated that he is not in favor of adding any further burdens on a bidder through an 
ordinance, noting that this could discourage responsible bidders from bidding, thus diminishing the 
City’s choices.  He stated that perhaps there are ways to get the desired information from staff. 
 
R. Stelford stated that he agrees that some vendors may not bid if they are mandated to provide this 
information.  He did state that the City Staff could provide a very good estimate of these figures using 
certified payrolls. 
 
It was the consensus of Council that they would like to receive this information but that an ordinance 
should not be passed to accomplish this.  City Staff was instructed to capture this information either 
through the bid process or using Certified Payrolls and to subsequently transmit this to City Council. 
 
 
 
 



Woodstock City Council 
October 2, 2014 

Page 10 of 10 
 

4. Miscellaneous 
In response to a question from Mayor Sager, it was the consensus of City Council to offer the WHS 
Political Science class the opportunity to craft an ordinance naming the woods at the Albert Property 
after William Donato. 
 
ADJOURN 
Motion by J. Dillon, second by J. Starzynski, to adjourn this special City Council workshop to a 
Special Meeting of the City Council, a Manufacturers’ Forum, on Tuesday, October 7, 2014, at 
4:00PM at Stage Left Café.  Ayes:  Dillon,  Larson, Thompson, Turner, Saladin, Starzynski, and 
Mayor Sager. Nays:  None.  Absentees:  None.  Abstentions:  None.  Motion carried.  
 
Meeting adjourned at 6:00PM. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Cindy Smiley 
Chief Deputy Clerk 



MINUTES 
WOODSTOCK CITY COUNCIL 

October 21, 2014 
City Council Chambers 

 
The regular meeting of the Woodstock City Council was called to order at 7:00 PM by Mayor Brian 
Sager on Tuesday, October 21, 2014 in Council Chambers at City Hall.   
 
A roll call was taken.   
  
COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT: Julie Dillon, Maureen Larson, Mayor Brian Sager, Mark 
Saladin, RB Thompson, Michael Turner 
 
COUNCIL MEMBERS ABSENT: Joseph Starzynski 
 
STAFF PRESENT: City Manager Roscoe Stelford, City Attorney Ruth Schlossberg, Finance Director 
Paul Christensen, Director of Public Works Paul Ruscko, Economic Development Director Cort 
Carlson, HR Director Deb Schober, Grant Writer Terry Willcockson, Opera House Director John 
Scharres, City Manager’s Office Assistant Monica Amraen, Planning and Zoning Administrator Jim 
Kastner, Library Director Nick Weber, Officer Adam Schraw, Police Chief Robert Lowen, Officer 
Dave Dempsey, Sergeant Tino Cippolla, Sergeant Josh Fourdyce, Officer Adam Schraw, Officer 
Eiselstein, Chief Deputy City Clerk Cindy Smiley, IT Dan McElmeel, Staff Accountant Ruth Ann Lee, 
Police Detective Shane Marshall, Officer Josh Rapacz, Building Inspector Rob Walkington, Officer 
Jason Bernstein, Officer Cory Fink, Senior Accountant Bill Straczek, Sergeant Dan Wesolek, Librarian 
Martha Hansen, Community and Econ. Dev. Officer Mgr. Donna Limbaugh, Librarian Julie Fee 
 
OTHERS PRESENT: City Clerk Dianne Mitchell 
 
A. FLOOR DISCUSSION:   
1. Proclamation Honoring Dianne Mitchell     
Mayor Sager invited Dianne Mitchell to the podium where he read a proclamation honoring her 
service as City Clerk. 
     
2. Illinois Traffic Safety Award 
Chief Lowen stated that he invited retired sergeant Dennis Leard to the meeting and advised that Sgt. 
Pritchard who assisted D. Leard and will take on the program could not be at tonight’s meeting.  He 
reported that this is the fifth year they have entered the Traffic Safety Challenge which is sponsored 
by the IL Association of Chiefs of Police. He stated that Sgt. Leard coordinated the process and did 
the organizing and documenting of the many efforts of the Police Department to comply with the 
requirements of the Traffic Safety Challenge. He reviewed what the application process involves.  
 
Chief Lowen stated that the program has shown positive results and advised that the increased 
apprehension of impaired drivers, speed enforcement, seatbelt compliance and the participation in 
National and State campaigns combined with public education has reduced the total number of 
crashes. He noted that their efforts in 13/14 were a success and will continue in 14/15 with Sgt. 
Pritchard taking sole responsibility of the program. 
 
Chief Lowen reported that the Woodstock Police Department was recognized as the 1st place winner 
in the State for agencies with 36-50 employees. He stated that the Department received a plaque and 
Traffic Safety badge and was awarded a $4,000 “Digital-Ally” in-car video camera. He noted that 
participation in the challenge is consistent with the provisions of the City of Woodstock’s Vision 
2020 Statement.  Chief Lowen congratulated the Department. 
 



Woodstock City Council 
10/21/14 

Page 2 of 7 
 

Mayor Sager extended on behalf of Council and the residents their heartfelt gratitude and 
congratulations to Sgt. Leard for his leadership and to the entirety of the Department. He stated that 
we assume in our community that we are going to have a safe place in which to live and we take that 
for granted in many respects but we must realize that our Police Department plays a significant role 
in ensuring that safety and welfare. He expressed appreciation for their proactive approach and 
thanked them for representing the City of Woodstock so well. 
 
3. Employee Service Awards 
Mayor Sager stated that one of the fine opportunities for Council is to annually extend the Employee 
Service Awards to members of our employee family that have continued to dedicate themselves in 
the service of the people of Woodstock through their tenure as employees of the City.  He reported 
that Council members are constantly addressed by members of the community and rarely in over 
twenty years of service on the City Council have individuals come to him and complained about the 
service provided by City Staff; noting that he hears appreciation and expressions of gratitude.  He 
stated that Council doesn’t worry about the services being provided because they know the City’s 
employees are dedicated. He advised that they know the jobs they hold aren’t just eight hours a day 
for five days a week and because they are in public service they are attuned to the needs of our 
community and are responsive to those needs.   
 
Mayor Sager stated that this annual opportunity for us to say thanks to those that have met tenure 
milestones is something that they want to do and something that they hold as a significant 
opportunity.  He stated that they cannot express adequate amount of gratitude noting that they 
respect, thank and commend them for that service.  He recognized the following employees: 
 
10 years 
Monica Amraen – City Manager’s Office Assistant 
Dave Dempsey – Patrol Officer 
Josh Fourdyce – Police Sergeant 
Ruth Ann Lee – Staff Accountant 
Shane Marshall – Police Detective 
Josh Rapacz – Patrol Officer 
Adam Schraw – Patrol Officer 
Rob Walkington - Building inspector 
 
15 years 
Jason Bernstein – Patrol Officer 
Cory Fink – Patrol Officer 
 
20 years 
Bill Straczek – Senior Accountant 
Dan Wesolek – Police Sergeant 
Terry Willcockson – Grant Writer 
 
25 years 
Martha Hanson – Librarian/Network Administrator 
Jim Kastner – Planning & Zoning Administrator 
Donna Limbaugh – Community and Economic Development Office Manager 
 
30 years 
Julie Fee – Reference and Adult Services Librarian 



Woodstock City Council 
10/21/14 

Page 3 of 7 
 

 
Public Comments 
No comments from the public. 
 
Council Comments 
M. Saladin stated that in seeing all of the police officers in attendance you think about what you have 
been reading about the Holiday Hills incident and how any situation can turn into something more 
dramatic and how in that situation some part-time officers assisted the County officers to get them 
out of the line of fire. He stated that it good to know what they go through every day. 
 
Mayor Sager stated that trick-or-treating on the Square will take place on Friday, October 31st at 4 
p.m. C. Smiley advised that the costume contest takes place before trick-or-treating. Mayor Sager 
advised that Friday will also be the last night for the Haunted House.   
 
Mayor Sager stated that there are three more sessions of the Farmers Market on the Square. He 
reported that they will then have a Winter Market in McHenry County Farm Bureau. 
 
Mayor Sager advised that there will be a Rt. 47 Businesses Meeting at 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 
October 23rd at Golden Eagle.  He invited Council to attend the meeting if they are available. 
 
Mayor Sager stated that leaf collection begins next Monday, October 27th. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA: 
Motion by J. Dillon, second by RB Thompson to concur with Consent Agenda Items B-E7. 

 
 M. Turner removed Item E8 
 Mayor Sager introduced Arlene Quinn who will be appointed as City Clerk and Amy Weber 

who will be appointed as Deputy City Clerk.  He expressed gratefulness for their willingness 
to do this and he wished them good luck.   
 

B.        MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS:              
            October 7, 2014 Regular Meeting 
  
 C.        WARRANTS:   3635     3636 
 
D. MINUTES AND REPORTS:  
 Police Department Report – September 2014 
     
E. MANAGER'S REPORT NO. 33 
 

1. Appointment of City Clerk and Deputy City Clerk – Approval of the appointments of 
Arleen Quinn as City Clerk and Amy Weber as Deputy City Clerk. 
 

2. Purchase – Ice Control Salt – Approval of the purchase of ice control salt from Morton 
Salt Company through the State of Illinois Joint Purchasing Program at a unit price of 
$140.19 per ton. 
 

3. Crack Sealing – Approval to waive competitive bids and award of contract for the 2014 
Crack Sealing contract to S.K.C. Construction for the bid unit price of $0.63 per routing 
and crack sealing in an amount not to exceed $25,000 subject to final direction by the 



Woodstock City Council 
10/21/14 

Page 4 of 7 
 

Director of Public Works. 
 

4. Intergovernmental Agreement – Adoption of Ordinance 14-O-61 authorizing the 
execution of the Northern Illinois Purchasing Cooperative (NIPC) 2014 
Intergovernmental Agreement for the purchase of power supplies and other goods and 
services; waiving local bidding requirements for purchases made through NIPC; and 
authorizing purchase agreements made through NIPC. 

 
5. Centerville Self-Storage Vacation of Easement – Adoption of Ordinance 14-O-62 

vacating a public utility easement. 
  

6. Police Pension Actuarial Valuation – Transmittal and acceptance of the annual 
statement for the Police Pension Fund Fiscal Year 2013/2014 and actuarial report 
presented by the Police Pension Board. 

 
7. Zoning Variation – 700 Margaret Drive – Adoption of Ordinance 14-O-63 varying 

Section 7A.3.D.3 Bulk and Standards Area of the Unified Development Ordinance to 
allow a 6 foot high fence at a 30 foot set-back from the front lot line. 
 

A roll call vote was taken. Ayes: J. Dillon, M. Larson, Mayor Sager, M. Saladin, J. Starzynski, RB 
Thompson, M. Turner. Nays: None. Absentees: None. Abstentions: None. Motion carried. 
 
Item E8 Fiber Optic Agreement – Approval of a Fiber Optic Network Agreement between the 
City of Woodstock, District 200, McHenry County, McHenry County College  and  the 
McHenry County Emergency Telephone System Board. 
 
M. Turner stated that this agreement and the cooperation that is occurring between the different 
governing bodies is an exceptional example of us trying to do things to achieve something that has 
tremendous potential for the community. He stated that brining this kind of infrastructure and 
technology to the city and the area is an exceptional opportunity.  He commended Staff and Roscoe.  
He stated that in reading through the agreement he has a curious question. He advised that he saw the 
issue with District 200 not putting forth their portion of it and instead paying it over time. 
 
R. Stelford advised that they were in negotiations with District 200 and they made the request upon 
both the City and the County to see if there was anyway they could provide financial assistance. He 
reported that based on their current financial structure, the District was unable to come up with the 
means to pay for it all up front.  He advised that the District has reached its limit and cannot issue 
new debt in order to pay for it and they didn’t feel that their reserves are adequate enough for them to 
remove it from the reserves.  He stated that the City wanted to see it go forward for the community as 
it has tremendous benefit for the schools and allows them to meet a variety of regulations to where 
they have to provide certain bandwidth speeds to their students.   
 
R. Stelford stated that the City has on average about twenty million dollars of investments at any 
given time so what better way than to invest in our own school district.  He stated that Administration 
does understand that they have to front the cash and advised that the City does have some of their 
cash on hand because it holds their impact fees for building permits.  He noted that the District has 
agreed to let the City hold those if they fail to pay.  He stated that the City’s current interest rates on 
their funds is not an all time high right now.  He stated that the County also felt it was important that 
if the City would be willing to front some of the cash then the County would also be willing to do it. 
 



Woodstock City Council 
10/21/14 

Page 5 of 7 
 

M. Turner stated that he is completely supportive of R. Stelford and Staff stepping up and doing this 
and he is supportive of the stance the City is taking.  He advised that it is worth observing that the 
City is half the budget of District 200.  He stated that the City is fronting $322,000 over four years 
without any interest and the County is fronting the remainder up to a total of $806,000.  He stated 
that in the course of the past six years Council has made some difficult decision such as not taking 
PTELL, freezing salaries and have had a hiring freeze which puts the City in a position to do those 
things.  He stated that he finds it mildly annoying that given the opportunity for other entities in the 
County to avoid PTELL and to manage their finances.  He advised that he is speaking more as a 
taxpayer than a Council person and stated that he finds it a bit odd and bit of a surprise that maybe 
the pain we have felt as a Council, a City and as Staff by not taking salary increases allows us to have 
the flexibility that we have.  He wonders why the City has to do it. 
 
Mayor Sager stated that the questions are appropriate. He advised that this is exactly the type of thing 
we need to be doing on a larger basis to work together and provide collective solutions to problems. 
He stated that there are two things to keep in mind. He advised that the School District is more at risk 
relative to State capacity to pay than the City noting that the revenue stream coming from the State is 
a concern.  He advised that the reserves that are set aside in the School District need to be large and 
enough to withstand a lack of revenue coming in for a much larger body of employees. He advised 
that those are burdens that the District has that perhaps the City doesn’t bear to the same extent or 
nature. He stated that being able to step in and assist based upon the City’s capacity to manage is a 
blessing and he feels is the right thing to do. 
 
M. Turner stated that he supports it and he will vote for it as there is no question that they are doing 
the right thing in respect to this. He admits that he doesn’t know the ins and outs of the School 
District budget, but taxpayers look at the fact that because they have the great burden of a bigger 
budget and more reserves, they also collect a greater percentage of taxes to fund it.  He contended 
that there are some things that the City has done and Staff has borne over the last six years that he has 
not seen in his passing reading of the Independent or the NWH as to things that others might be 
doing.  He stated that the City was one of the first entities to not to take PTELL back in 2008.  He 
stated that other taxing bodies continue to take it as the normal thing and property taxes in this 
County and State are one of greatest detriments to growth.  He doesn’t think it should go without 
mentioning that other perhaps other entities in the County need to take a similar position as the City 
has done over the last six years.  He will vote for it but those issues are worth laying  on the table. 
 
R. Schlossberg stated that the item was submitted subject to attorney approval which is because there 
are a lot of other bodies involved.  She advised that when the packet went out she didn’t have all the 
comments.  She doesn’t know if what Council has before them is the final version but she thinks it is.  
She reported that yesterday afternoon she came in and incorporated the County’s comments which 
weren’t material changes but some clarifications on some of the voting standards and on who is 
responsible for responding to FOIA requests.  She advised that there may be more changes but as 
long as they aren’t material to the operations but more administrative, they will review them and are 
comfortable approving them.   
 
Motion by M. Turner, second by M. Saladin, to authorize the Mayor and City Clerk to execute the 
intergovernmental Fiber Optic Network Agreement between the City of Woodstock, District 200, 
McHenry County, McHenry County College and the McHenry County Emergency Telephone 
System Board subject to final review and editorial approval by the City Attorney. Ayes: J. Dillon, M. 
Larson, Mayor Sager, M. Saladin, RB Thompson, M. Turner. Nays: None. Absentees: J. Starzynski. 
Abstentions: None. Motion carried. 
 



Woodstock City Council 
10/21/14 

Page 6 of 7 
 

DISCUSSION ITEMS: 
 
9. Old Courthouse Response 
Mayor Sager stated that the purpose of this item is to consider whether or not it is appropriate to 
derive consensus regarding a specific response to recent editorial on the Old Courthouse, roof and 
associated costs. He asked Council if the recent newspaper editorial exhibit factual errors and 
commentary potentially resulting in a misunderstanding regarding the improvements to the Old 
Courthouse roof and associated costs on behalf of readership; Council conceded. He asked if the 
factual errors and commentary are substantial enough to warrant a collective letter to the editor from 
the body of the City Council in response; Council conceded.  He asked if Council should direct Staff 
to perfect and submit a letter to the editor in response to the editorial; Council conceded. 
 

      EXECUTIVE SESSION: 
Motion by J. Dillon, second by M. Larson to adjourn to Executive Session for the purpose of 
discussing: 
 
Collective Bargaining (Open Meetings Act: 5ILCS 120/2 (c)(2)Collective negotiating matters 
between the public body and its employees or their representatives, or deliberations concerning 
salary schedules for one or more classes of employees. 
 
Local 150 
 
Ayes: J. Dillon, M. Larson, Mayor Sager, M. Saladin, RB Thompson, M. Turner. Nays: None. 
Absentees: J. Starzynski. Abstentions: None. Motion carried. 
 
The Woodstock City Council adjourned to Executive Session at 7:47 PM.  
 
RETURN TO OPEN SESSION 
The City Council returned to Open Session at 8:29 PM.   
 
COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT: Julie Dillon, Maureen Larson, Mayor Brian Sager, Mark 
Saladin, RB Thompson, Michael Turner 
 
COUNCIL MEMBERS ABSENT: Joseph Starzynski 
 
STAFF PRESENT: HR Director Deb Schober, Director of Public Works Paul Ruscko, Finance 
Director Paul Christensen, City Attorney Ruth Schlossberg, City Manager Roscoe Stelford 
 
OTHERS PRESENT:  Chief Deputy City Clerk Cindy Smiley, City Clerk Dianne Mitchell, Newly 
Appointed City Clerk Arlene Quinn, Newly Appointed Deputy City Clerk Amy Weber 
 
10.  Local 150 Agreement- Approval of a Collective Bargaining Agreement between the City of 
 Woodstock and the International Union of Operating Engineers, Local 150, Public Employees 
 Division. 
 
Motion by J. Dillon, second by RB Thompson to authorize the City Manager to execute the Collective 
Bargaining Agreement between the City of Woodstock and the International Union of Operating 
Engineers, Local 150, Public Employees Division for all Public Works bargaining unit employees for 
the period of May 1, 2014 through April 30, 2018. 
 



Woodstock City Council 
10/21/14 

Page 7 of 7 
 

D. Schober thanked Mayor Sager and Council for their support. 
 
A roll call vote was taken. Ayes: J. Dillon, M. Larson, Mayor Sager, M. Saladin, RB Thompson, M. 
Turner. Nays: None. Absentees: J. Starzynski. Abstentions: None. Motion carried. 
 

 FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
 Mayor Sager stated that there has been ongoing dialog with Woodstock Celebrates and advised that 

they are coming into a time crunch as they hoped to have something by October 31st, but they are still 
in a discussion stage. He reported that M. Turner is leading the discussion and advised that the 
consideration has been to look at the joint formation of a body that would serve in the same capacity 
as an economic development group to work together to create a marketing program with a private 
vendor.  He asked for consensus from Council on whether this is the direction they want to move.   

 
 M. Turner stated that the conversations with Woodstock Celebrates, Inc. have been very positive.  He 

stated that there is great desire on their part in understanding of the urgency to hit the October 31st 
deadline.  He reported that they have gone down a path of bringing the concept of an entity that they 
are part of and Council is part of.  He noted that they are working up the details of it.  

 
 Mayor Sager wanted to know if this is something that is completely off the table for everyone since it 

is time sensitive. He asked if there is interest in a separate board composed of members from the 
different entities. J. Dillon advised that she is willing to go down the path, RB Thompson is open, M. 
Larson is good and M. Saladin thinks they need to explore it, but is a little concerned about it. 

   
 ADJOURNMENT: 

Motion by M. Turner, second by M. Saladin, to adjourn the regular meeting of the City Council to 
the November 4, 2014 City Council meeting. Ayes: J. Dillon, M. Larson, Mayor Sager, M. Saladin, 
RB Thompson, M. Turner. Nays: None. Absentees: J. Starzynski. Abstentions: None. Motion carried. 
 
Meeting adjourned at 8:37 PM. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
___________________________ 
Dianne Mitchell - City Clerk 



MINUTES 
WOODSTOCK CITY COUNCIL 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 
October 21, 2014 

City Council Chambers 
 
The Executive Session of the Woodstock City Council was called to order at by Mayor Brian 
Sager at 7:48 PM on Tuesday, October 21, 2014 in Council Chambers at Woodstock City Hall. 
 
A roll call was taken. 
 
COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT: Julie Dillon, Maureen Larson, Mayor Brian Sager, Mark 
Saladin, RB Thompson, Michael Turner 
 
COUNCIL MEMBERS ABSENT: Joseph Starzynski 
 
STAFF PRESENT: HR Director Deb Schober, Director of Public Works Paul Ruscko, Finance 
Director Paul Christensen, City Attorney Ruth Schlossberg, City Manager Roscoe Stelford 
 
OTHERS PRESENT: Chief Deputy City Clerk Cindy Smiley, City Clerk Dianne Mitchell, 
Newly Appointed City Clerk Arlene Quinn, Newly Appointed Deputy City Clerk Amy Weber 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Collective Bargaining (Open Meetings Act: 5ILCS 120/2 (c)(2) 
Collective negotiating matters between the public body and its employees or their 
representatives, or deliberations concerning salary schedules for one or more classes of 
employees. 
 
Local 150 
 
The City Council discussed a matter of collective bargaining regarding Local 150.  
 
RETURN TO OPEN SESSION: 
Motion by M. Larson, second by M. Saladin, to adjourn from Executive Session and return to 
Open Session. Ayes: J. Dillon, M. Larson, Mayor Sager, M. Saladin, J. Starzynski, RB 
Thompson, M. Turner. Nays: None. Absentees: None. Abstentions: None. Motion carried. 
 
Council adjourned to Open Session at 8:29 PM. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
___________________________ 
Dianne Mitchell 
City Clerk 























DATE: 10/27/14                                           CITY OF WOODSTOCK                                                 PAGE:   1
TIME: 15:22:24                                         WARRANT NUMBER 003638
ID: AP490000.WOW

                                               FROM CHECK #  98464 TO CHECK #  98652

CHECK #  VENDOR NAME                    TRANSACTION DESCRIPTION        FUND / DEPARTMENT CHARGED                              AMOUNT
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
  98464  SECRETARY OF STATE             REGISTRATION                   GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREETS DIVISION              105.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          105.00

  98465  AFLAC                          INSURANCE PREMIUM              GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / GENERAL                     2,410.68
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        2,410.68

  98466  MONICA AMRAEN                  SENIORS SUPPLIES               GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / COMMUNITY EVENTS               14.96
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           14.96

  98467  ARAMARK UNIFORM SERVICE        UNIFORM RENTAL SERVICES        GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / FLEET MAINTENANCE              18.11
                                        UNIFORM RENTAL SERVICES        PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARKS                        11.40
                                        UNIFORM RENTAL SERVICES        WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA         14.75
                                        UNIFORM RENTAL SERVICES        GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREETS DIVISION               15.96
                                        UNIFORM RENTAL SERVICES        WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / WATER TREATMENT           8.08
                                        UNIFORM RENTAL SERVICES        WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / WATER TREATMENT          10.64
                                        UNIFORM RENTAL SERVICES        WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWAGE TREATMENT         11.40
                                        UNIFORM RENTAL SERVICES        GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / FLEET MAINTENANCE              18.11
                                        UNIFORM RENTAL SERVICES        PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARKS                        11.40
                                        UNIFORM RENTAL SERVICES        WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA         14.75
                                        UNIFORM RENTAL SERVICES        GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREETS DIVISION               15.96
                                        UNIFORM RENTAL SERVICES        WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / WATER TREATMENT           8.08
                                        UNIFORM RENTAL SERVICES        WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / WATER TREATMENT          10.64
                                        UNIFORM RENTAL SERVICES        WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWAGE TREATMENT         11.40
                                        UNIFORM RENTAL SERVICES        GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / FLEET MAINTENANCE              18.11
                                        UNIFORM RENTAL SERVICES        PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARKS                        11.40
                                        UNIFORM RENTAL SERVICES        WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA         14.75
                                        UNIFORM RENTAL SERVICES        GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREETS DIVISION               15.96
                                        UNIFORM RENTAL SERVICES        WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / WATER TREATMENT           8.08
                                        UNIFORM RENTAL SERVICES        WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / WATER TREATMENT           6.67
                                        UNIFORM RENTAL SERVICES        WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWAGE TREATMENT         11.40
                                        UNIFORM RENTAL SERVICES        GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / FLEET MAINTENANCE              18.11
                                        UNIFORM RENTAL SERVICES        PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARKS                        11.40
                                        UNIFORM RENTAL SERVICES        WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA         14.75
                                        UNIFORM RENTAL SERVICES        GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREETS DIVISION               15.96
                                        UNIFORM RENTAL SERVICES        WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / WATER TREATMENT           8.08
                                        UNIFORM RENTAL SERVICES        WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / WATER TREATMENT           6.67
                                        UNIFORM RENTAL SERVICES        WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWAGE TREATMENT         11.40
                                        UNIFORM RENTAL SERVICES        POLICE PROTECTION FUND / POLICE PROTECTION              25.57
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          378.99



DATE: 10/27/14                                           CITY OF WOODSTOCK                                                 PAGE:   2
TIME: 15:22:25                                         WARRANT NUMBER 003638
ID: AP490000.WOW

                                               FROM CHECK #  98464 TO CHECK #  98652

CHECK #  VENDOR NAME                    TRANSACTION DESCRIPTION        FUND / DEPARTMENT CHARGED                              AMOUNT
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
  98468  ASSOCIATED ELECTRICAL          INSTALL NEW JUNCTION BOX       WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / WATER TREATMENT         199.13
                                        CHECK FIELD LIGHTS             PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARKS                       125.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          324.13

  98469  ATLAS BOBCAT LLC               PARTS                          PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARKS                        20.58
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           20.58

  98470  BARRACUDA NETWORKS INC         SERVICE                        PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LIBRARY                    50.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           50.00

  98471  BSF CO                         HINGE BRACKET & PIN            PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARKS                       532.13
                                        HINGE BRACKET & PIN            GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / COMMUNITY & ECONOMIC D        185.45
                                        HINGE BRACKET & PIN            GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREETS DIVISION              349.01
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        1,066.59

  98472  BAKER & TAYLOR BOOKS           BOOKS                          PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LIBRARY                   954.28
                                        BOOKS                          PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LIBRARY                  -790.10
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          164.18

  98473  BOHN'S ACE HARDWARE            BATTERIES                      GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREETS DIVISION               76.95
                                        SUPPLIES/MATERIALS             GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREETS DIVISION               26.99
                                        SUPPLIES/MATERIALS             GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREETS DIVISION               22.45
                                        KEYS & SCREWS                  GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / CITY HALL                      47.33
                                        SUPPLIES/MATERIALS             GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREETS DIVISION               29.98
                                        BOLTS                          GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREETS DIVISION               16.24
                                        SUPPLIES/MATERIALS             GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREETS DIVISION               27.97
                                        SUPPLIES/MATERIALS             GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREETS DIVISION               48.87
                                        SUPPLIES/MATERIALS             GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREETS DIVISION              197.59
                                        BOLTS                          GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / RECREATION DIVISION             1.90
                                        SUPPLIES/MATERIALS             GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREETS DIVISION                7.99
                                        SUPPLIES/MATERIALS             GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREETS DIVISION               27.26
                                        SUPPLIES/MATERIALS             GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREETS DIVISION              -12.99
                                        SUPPLIES/MATERIALS             GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREETS DIVISION               20.99
                                        SUPPLIES/MATERIALS             GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREETS DIVISION               28.24
                                        SUPPLIES/MATERIALS             GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREETS DIVISION               22.47
                                        SUPPLIES/MATERIALS             GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREETS DIVISION               31.54
                                        KEYS                           GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREETS DIVISION               40.14
                                        CAULKGUN                       CAPITAL IMP. GEN. CORP. FUND / STREETS/SIDEWALK          7.98



DATE: 10/27/14                                           CITY OF WOODSTOCK                                                 PAGE:   3
TIME: 15:22:26                                         WARRANT NUMBER 003638
ID: AP490000.WOW

                                               FROM CHECK #  98464 TO CHECK #  98652

CHECK #  VENDOR NAME                    TRANSACTION DESCRIPTION        FUND / DEPARTMENT CHARGED                              AMOUNT
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
  98473  BOHN'S ACE HARDWARE            POOL PAINTING                  AQUATIC CENTER FUND / AQUATIC CENTER                    34.93
                                        POOL PAINTING                  AQUATIC CENTER FUND / AQUATIC CENTER                    46.92
                                        POOL PAINTING                  AQUATIC CENTER FUND / AQUATIC CENTER                    38.81
                                        SUPPLIES/MATERIALS             PERFORMING ARTS FUND / OPERA HOUSE                       8.66
                                        SUPPLIES/MATERIALS             GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREETS DIVISION              -13.99
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          785.22

  98474  BOTTS WELDING SERVICE          LEAF MACHINE PARTS             ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT FUND / ENVIRONMENTAL M         38.20
                                        FITTINGS                       WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA         51.70
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           89.90

  98475  JUDITH BROWN                   RECREATION INSTRUCTION         RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREATION CENTER             128.00
                                        RECREATION INSTRUCTION         RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREATION CENTER             128.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          256.00

  98476  BUCK BROS, INC.                EXHAUST ELBOW                  PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARKS                        80.88
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           80.88

  98477  BUILDERS UNITED SALES CO INC   MOVEABLE WALL REPAIR           RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREATION CENTER           1,850.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        1,850.00

  98478  CARQUEST AUTO PARTS STORES     FITTINGS, POWER STEER          GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREETS DIVISION               48.29
                                        STREET STOCK                   GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREETS DIVISION              497.29
                                        STOCK                          GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREETS DIVISION               12.96
                                        FILTERS                        GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREETS DIVISION               65.88
                                        GASKET                         PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARKS                         3.49
                                        VALVES                         GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREETS DIVISION               28.44
                                        FITTINGS                       WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA         43.88
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          700.23

  98479  CENTURY MANUFACTURING          DEGREASER                      GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREETS DIVISION              564.83
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          564.83

  98480  CHICAGO COFFEE ROASTERY, INC.  CAFE SUPPLIES                  PERFORMING ARTS FUND / CAFE                             69.90
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           69.90

  98481  CHICAGO TRIBUNE                NEWSPAPER SUBSCRIPTION         PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LIBRARY                   539.46
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          539.46



DATE: 10/27/14                                           CITY OF WOODSTOCK                                                 PAGE:   4
TIME: 15:22:27                                         WARRANT NUMBER 003638
ID: AP490000.WOW

                                               FROM CHECK #  98464 TO CHECK #  98652

CHECK #  VENDOR NAME                    TRANSACTION DESCRIPTION        FUND / DEPARTMENT CHARGED                              AMOUNT
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
  98482  CORPORATE SERVICES             LABOR                          GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREETS DIVISION              358.80
                                        LABOR                          GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREETS DIVISION              478.40
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          837.20

  98483  COMCAST CABLE                  COMMUNICATIONS                 RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREATION CENTER             122.90
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          122.90

  98484  COMMUNITY PLUMBING COMPANY     REPAIR -SURREY HOUSE           WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA        273.04
                                        INSTALL SHUT OFFS-1538 BULL VA WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA        200.22
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          473.26

  98485  COMMONWEALTH EDISON            UTILITY SERVICES               WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA         84.06
                                        UTILITY SERVICES               WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA        160.08
                                        UTILITY SERVICES               WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA         88.66
                                        UTILITY SERVICES               WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA         50.37
                                        UTILITY SERVICES               PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARKS                        29.79
                                        UTILITY SERVICES               WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA        176.38
                                        UTILITY SERVICES               WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA         73.30
                                        UTILITY SERVICES               WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA        132.88
                                        UTILITY SERVICES               WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA         59.31
                                        UTILITY SERVICES               WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA        145.73
                                        UTILITY SERVICES               WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA         87.02
                                        UTILITY SERVICES               WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA         87.78
                                        UTILITY SERVICES               WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA         38.90
                                        UTILITY SERVICES               GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREETS DIVISION               41.14
                                        UTILITY SERVICES               PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARKS                     1,207.55
                                        UTILITY SERVICES               WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA        100.88
                                        AGGREGATION REPORT             ESCROW FUND / ESCROW ACCOUNT                            86.00
                                        AGGREGATE LIST                 ESCROW FUND / ESCROW ACCOUNT                           473.00
                                        UTILITY SERVICES               WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA        146.02
                                        UTILITY SERVICES               PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARKS                       121.52
                                        UTILITY SERVICES               GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / CITY HALL                      51.73
                                        UTILITY SERVICES               GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / CITY HALL                     159.21
                                        UTILITY SERVICES               PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARKS                        40.00
                                        UTILITY SERVICES               PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARKS                        18.38
                                        UTILITY SERVICES               GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREETS DIVISION               21.20
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        3,680.89



DATE: 10/27/14                                           CITY OF WOODSTOCK                                                 PAGE:   5
TIME: 15:22:28                                         WARRANT NUMBER 003638
ID: AP490000.WOW

                                               FROM CHECK #  98464 TO CHECK #  98652

CHECK #  VENDOR NAME                    TRANSACTION DESCRIPTION        FUND / DEPARTMENT CHARGED                              AMOUNT
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
  98486  COMMONWEALTH EDISON            UTILITY SVCS- STREET LIGHTING  GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREETS DIVISION              129.37
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          129.37

  98487  COMPASS MINERALS               COARSE ROCK SALT               WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / WATER TREATMENT       1,896.92
                                        COARSE ROCK SALT               WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / WATER TREATMENT       1,817.95
                                        COARSE ROCK SALT               WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / WATER TREATMENT       2,141.23
                                        COARSE ROCK SALT               WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / WATER TREATMENT       1,954.50
                                        COARSE ROCK SALT               WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / WATER TREATMENT       1,658.36
                                        COARSE ROCK SALT               WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / WATER TREATMENT       2,130.53
                                        COARSE ROCK SALT               WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / WATER TREATMENT       2,044.16
                                        COARSE ROCK SALT               WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / WATER TREATMENT       2,040.87
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL       15,684.52

  98488  CONSTELLATION NEWENERGY        ELECTRIC SERVICE               WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA        170.27
                                        ELECTRIC SERVICE               WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWAGE TREATMENT     14,646.67
                                        ELECTRIC SERVICE               WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWAGE TREATMENT        208.72
                                        ELECTRIC SERVICE               WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA        146.28
                                        ELECTRIC SERVICE               WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA        388.54
                                        ELECTRIC SERVICE               WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA         43.19
                                        ELECTRIC SERVICE               WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA        206.66
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL       15,810.33

  98489  CORKSCREW GYMNASTICS AND SPORT RECREATION INSTRUCTION         GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / RECREATION DIVISION           800.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          800.00

  98490  CRESCENT ELECTRIC SUPPLY CO.   MATERIALS                      POLICE PROTECTION FUND / POLICE PROTECTION              27.90
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           27.90

  98491  DEMCO                          SUPPLIES                       PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LIBRARY                   234.61
                                        SUPPLIES                       PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LIBRARY                   220.44
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          455.05

  98492  DIRECT ENERGY BUSINESS         STREET LIGHTING                GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREETS DIVISION            3,841.83
                                        STREET LIGHTING                GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREETS DIVISION                6.54
                                        STREET LIGHTING                GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREETS DIVISION              161.92
                                        STREET LIGHTING                GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREETS DIVISION               29.18
                                        STREET LIGHTING                GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREETS DIVISION              289.43
                                        STREET LIGHTING                GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREETS DIVISION              267.62
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        4,596.52



DATE: 10/27/14                                           CITY OF WOODSTOCK                                                 PAGE:   6
TIME: 15:22:28                                         WARRANT NUMBER 003638
ID: AP490000.WOW

                                               FROM CHECK #  98464 TO CHECK #  98652

CHECK #  VENDOR NAME                    TRANSACTION DESCRIPTION        FUND / DEPARTMENT CHARGED                              AMOUNT
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
  98493  ALAN DUNKER                    BATTERIES AND PICTURES         GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / RECREATION DIVISION            34.81
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           34.81

  98494  EJ USA, INC                    MATERIALS                      GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREETS DIVISION              291.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          291.00

  98495  ENCORE DATA PRODUCTS INC       HEADPHONES                     PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LIBRARY                   198.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          198.00

  98496  ASHLEY ESUNIS                  RECREATION INSTRUCTOR          RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREATION CENTER              60.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           60.00

  98497  FIRST PLACE PROMOTIONS         AWARDS                         GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / RECREATION DIVISION           158.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          158.00

  98498  FIRSTMERIT BANKCARD CTR        TICKET REVENUE                 ESCROW FUND / ESCROW ACCOUNT                            54.10
                                        IGFOA HOTEL                    GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / FINANCE DEPARTMENT            143.36
                                        CONTINUING EDUCATION           GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / COMMUNITY & ECONOMIC D        125.00
                                        MEETING EXPENSE                GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / COMMUNITY & ECONOMIC D         70.00
                                        ICSC REGISTRATION              GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / COMMUNITY & ECONOMIC D        295.00
                                        TRAINING                       WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / ADMINISTRATION &         48.00
                                        TRAINING                       GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / PUBLIC WORKS ADMINISTR         70.00
                                        RETIREMENT - LESTER            WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / ADMINISTRATION &         59.50
                                        CAFE SUPPLIES                  PERFORMING ARTS FUND / OPERA HOUSE                      49.00
                                        WEBSITE                        PERFORMING ARTS FUND / OPERA HOUSE                      19.99
                                        UTILITY WINCH                  TAX INCREMENT FINANCING FUND / TAX INCREMENT FI        336.38
                                        PADS FOR AED'S                 LIABILITY INSURANCE FUND / LIABILITY INSURANCE         166.00
                                        TRAVEL                         GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / HUMAN RESOURCES               299.00
                                        LIBRARY MATERIALS              PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LIBRARY                    43.99
                                        YA PROGRAM SUPPLIES            PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LIBRARY                    28.36
                                        CHILDRENS BOOK                 PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LIBRARY                    12.84
                                        ART GALLERY RECEIPTION         PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LIBRARY                    12.20
                                        SUPPLIES                       PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LIBRARY                    37.33
                                        WEB RECEIPTS                   GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / RECREATION DIVISION            63.22
                                        WEB RECEIPTS                   GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / RECREATION DIVISION            15.00
                                        MATERIALS                      RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREATION CENTER             609.00
                                        WWW CHANGE TABLE               AQUATIC CENTER FUND / AQUATIC CENTER                    16.06
                                        COMMUNICATIONS                 GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / RECREATION DIVISION            20.00



DATE: 10/27/14                                           CITY OF WOODSTOCK                                                 PAGE:   7
TIME: 15:22:28                                         WARRANT NUMBER 003638
ID: AP490000.WOW

                                               FROM CHECK #  98464 TO CHECK #  98652

CHECK #  VENDOR NAME                    TRANSACTION DESCRIPTION        FUND / DEPARTMENT CHARGED                              AMOUNT
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
  98498  FIRSTMERIT BANKCARD CTR        RADIO UNIT CLASS               RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREATION CENTER              28.99
                                        REC CENTER LUNCH               RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREATION CENTER              42.75
                                        PLAY ROOM MEETING              RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREATION CENTER              34.89
                                        OFFICE SUPPLIES                GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / RECREATION DIVISION            20.29
                                        FURNACE FILTERS                RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREATION CENTER             399.92
                                        PROGRAM SUPPLIES               GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / RECREATION DIVISION            19.95
                                        PLAY ROOM SUPPLIES             RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREATION CENTER              42.42
                                        POMS FOR DANCE CLASS           GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / RECREATION DIVISION           214.80
                                        REC CENTER STAFF MEETING       GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / RECREATION DIVISION            72.10
                                        VOLUNTEER APPRECIATION         GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / RECREATION DIVISION           170.00
                                        PROGRAM SUPPLIES               GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / RECREATION DIVISION            19.95
                                        PROGRAM SUPPLIES               GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / RECREATION DIVISION            50.00
                                        INSTALL NEW POOL HEATER        RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREATION CENTER           1,237.58
                                        BECKY BIRTHDAY                 GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / RECREATION DIVISION            89.53
                                        WIRELESS APS                   GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / RECREATION DIVISION           198.48
                                        NETWORK SWITCH                 CAPITAL IMP. GEN. CORP. FUND / PUBLIC SAFETY            94.89
                                        WIRELESS APS                   CAPITAL IMP. GEN. CORP. FUND / PUBLIC SAFETY           918.00
                                        COMPUTER HARDWARE              CAPITAL IMP. GEN. CORP. FUND / GENERAL ADMINIST         41.93
                                        BATTERY BACKUP                 PERFORMING ARTS FUND / OPERA HOUSE                      82.99
                                        SURGE PROTECTOR                WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / WATER TREATMENT          48.99
                                        PHONE CASE                     GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / RECREATION DIVISION            29.00
                                        TRAINING                       POLICE PROTECTION FUND / POLICE PROTECTION              20.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        6,470.78

  98499  JILL FLORES                    RECREATION INSTRUCTOR          RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREATION CENTER             324.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          324.00

  98500  JAMES FRANKLIN                 OFFICIAL'S SERVICES            GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / RECREATION DIVISION            48.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           48.00

  98501  KATHLEEN GALLAGHER             EMER MED DISPATCH TRAINING     POLICE PROTECTION FUND / POLICE PROTECTION              30.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           30.00

  98502  GOLF ACADEMY AT TERRA COTTA    GOLF LESSONS                   GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / RECREATION DIVISION           105.00
                                        GOLF LESSONS                   GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / RECREATION DIVISION           176.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          281.00

  98503  HAAS SERVICE SYSTEM            JANITORIAL SERVICES - SEPTEMBE PUBLIC LIBRARY BUILDING FUND / LIBRARY BUILDING      2,100.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        2,100.00



DATE: 10/27/14                                           CITY OF WOODSTOCK                                                 PAGE:   8
TIME: 15:22:28                                         WARRANT NUMBER 003638
ID: AP490000.WOW

                                               FROM CHECK #  98464 TO CHECK #  98652

CHECK #  VENDOR NAME                    TRANSACTION DESCRIPTION        FUND / DEPARTMENT CHARGED                              AMOUNT
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
  98504  JACLYN HANSHAW                 RECREATION INSTRUCTOR          RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREATION CENTER              90.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           90.00

  98505  CHAS. HERDRICH & SON, INC.     SUPPLIES                       PERFORMING ARTS FUND / CAFE                             38.50
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           38.50

  98506  HI VIZ INC                     SIGNS                          GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREETS DIVISION              301.32
                                        SIGNS                          GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREETS DIVISION            1,692.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        1,993.32

  98507  INTERTRADE USA COMPANY         CAFE SUPPLIES                  PERFORMING ARTS FUND / CAFE                            456.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          456.00

  98508  J. W. TURF                     MUFFLER, GASKET                PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARKS                       160.72
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          160.72

  98509  JOHN WHITE STABLES             HORSEBACK RIDING               GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / RECREATION DIVISION           100.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          100.00

  98510  KALE UNIFORMS                  UNIFORMS                       POLICE PROTECTION FUND / POLICE PROTECTION              35.72
                                        UNIFORMS                       POLICE PROTECTION FUND / POLICE PROTECTION              79.50
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          115.22

  98511  DON KAMPS                      RECREATION OFFICIAL            GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / RECREATION DIVISION            48.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           48.00

  98512  BRIAN KELLY                    WATER/SEWER REFUND             WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / WATER & SEWER            11.49
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           11.49

  98513  LEE JENSEN SALES CO            DRAIN PLUGS                    GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREETS DIVISION              460.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          460.00

  98514  LEGAL DIRECTORIES PUBLISHING   BOOKS                          PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LIBRARY                    69.75
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           69.75

  98515  LLOYD'S PAINT AND PAPER, INC.  MATERIALS                      AQUATIC CENTER FUND / AQUATIC CENTER                    81.25
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           81.25



DATE: 10/27/14                                           CITY OF WOODSTOCK                                                 PAGE:   9
TIME: 15:22:29                                         WARRANT NUMBER 003638
ID: AP490000.WOW

                                               FROM CHECK #  98464 TO CHECK #  98652

CHECK #  VENDOR NAME                    TRANSACTION DESCRIPTION        FUND / DEPARTMENT CHARGED                              AMOUNT
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
  98516  MDC ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES     GARBAGE STICKERS               ESCROW FUND / ESCROW ACCOUNT                         3,870.00
                                        YARDWASTE STICKERS             ESCROW FUND / ESCROW ACCOUNT                         1,200.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        5,070.00

  98517  JORDAN MC ALEESE               WWW POOL PAINTING              AQUATIC CENTER FUND / AQUATIC CENTER                    40.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           40.00

  98518  PAMELA MCDONALD                RECREATION INSTRUCTION         RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREATION CENTER             287.50
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          287.50

  98519  M . J. PLUMBING INC            R.O.W. 429 BECKING             ESCROW FUND / ESCROW ACCOUNT                           100.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          100.00

  98520  MCHENRY ANALYTICAL WATER       SAMPLE TESTING                 WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / WATER TREATMENT         412.50
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          412.50

  98521  MC HENRY COUNTY COLLECTOR      REAL ESTATE TAXES              TAX INCREMENT FINANCING FUND / TAX INCREMENT FI        414.46
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          414.46

  98522  MENARDS                        MATERIALS & SUPPLIES           PERFORMING ARTS FUND / OPERA HOUSE                       8.66
                                        SAFETY GEAR                    PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARKS                        82.94
                                        MATERIALS & SUPPLIES           POLICE PROTECTION FUND / POLICE PROTECTION              73.20
                                        MATERIALS & SUPPLIES           GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREETS DIVISION               60.42
                                        MATERIALS & SUPPLIES           WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWAGE TREATMENT         20.41
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          245.63

  98523  MILLER ENGINEERING CO.         DEHUMIDIFIER REPAIR            WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / WATER TREATMENT       2,139.42
                                        DEHUMIDIFIER REPAIR            WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / WATER TREATMENT       1,699.50
                                        CHECK DECTRON UNIT             WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / WATER TREATMENT         448.33
                                        CHECK DECTRON UNIT             WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / WATER TREATMENT         798.25
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        5,085.50

  98524  MUSEreDESIGN                   ART INSTRUCTION                GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / RECREATION DIVISION           330.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          330.00

  98525  NAPA AUTO PARTS                MATERIALS TO MAINTAIN          WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWAGE TREATMENT         11.50
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           11.50



DATE: 10/27/14                                           CITY OF WOODSTOCK                                                 PAGE:  10
TIME: 15:22:30                                         WARRANT NUMBER 003638
ID: AP490000.WOW

                                               FROM CHECK #  98464 TO CHECK #  98652

CHECK #  VENDOR NAME                    TRANSACTION DESCRIPTION        FUND / DEPARTMENT CHARGED                              AMOUNT
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
  98526  MAILFINANCE                    METER RENTAL                   POLICE PROTECTION FUND / POLICE PROTECTION             153.51
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          153.51

  98527  NEUMAN POOLS INC               INSTALL NEW POOL HEATER        RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREATION CENTER           1,237.57
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        1,237.57

  98528  THE NEW YORK TIMES             ANNUAL SUBSCRIPTION            PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LIBRARY                   447.20
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          447.20

  98529  NORTH EAST MULTI-REGIONAL      TRAINING SERVICES              POLICE PROTECTION FUND / POLICE PROTECTION             400.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          400.00

  98530  NORTH SUBURBAN LIBRARY         QUARTERLY FEE-ICS SERVICE      PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LIBRARY                 5,979.84
                                        QUARTERLY FEE-TEXT SERVICE     PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LIBRARY                    99.48
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        6,079.32

  98531  NICOR                          UTILITY-GAS                    WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / WATER TREATMENT          44.96
                                        UTILITY-GAS                    RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREATION CENTER             371.55
                                        UTILITY-GAS                    WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA         25.56
                                        UTILITY-GAS                    WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA         28.07
                                        UTILITY-GAS                    WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA         80.56
                                        UTILITY-GAS                    AQUATIC CENTER FUND / AQUATIC CENTER                   203.59
                                        UTILITY-GAS                    WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWAGE TREATMENT         75.22
                                        UTILITY-GAS                    AQUATIC CENTER FUND / AQUATIC CENTER                   940.36
                                        UTILITY-GAS                    WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA         26.40
                                        UTILITY-GAS                    WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA         29.38
                                        UTILITY-GAS                    WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / WATER TREATMENT         396.30
                                        UTILITY-GAS                    WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA         27.03
                                        UTILITY-GAS                    WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA         23.11
                                        UTILITY-GAS                    WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA         24.76
                                        UTILITY-GAS                    WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA         25.33
                                        UTILITY-GAS                    WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWAGE TREATMENT         39.99
                                        UTILITY-GAS                    WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWAGE TREATMENT         34.61
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        2,396.78

  98532  OFFICE DEPOT                   OFFICE SUPPLIES                GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / FLEET MAINTENANCE             168.41
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          168.41



DATE: 10/27/14                                           CITY OF WOODSTOCK                                                 PAGE:  11
TIME: 15:22:30                                         WARRANT NUMBER 003638
ID: AP490000.WOW

                                               FROM CHECK #  98464 TO CHECK #  98652

CHECK #  VENDOR NAME                    TRANSACTION DESCRIPTION        FUND / DEPARTMENT CHARGED                              AMOUNT
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
  98533  OPP. FRANCHISING, INC.         SERVICE- OCT 2014              RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREATION CENTER           1,507.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        1,507.00

  98534  STANDARD EQUIPMENT COMPANY     IMPELLER                       ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT FUND / ENVIRONMENTAL M      2,517.78
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        2,517.78

  98535  PACIFIC TELEMANAGEMENT         LONG DISTANCE                  PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LIBRARY                    33.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           33.00

  98536  POLICE PENSION FUND            TRANSFER                       POLICE PROTECTION FUND / POLICE PROTECTION           6,894.24
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        6,894.24

  98537  POOLBLU                        CHEMICALS                      RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREATION CENTER             347.74
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          347.74

  98538  PORT-A-JOHN                    RENTAL SERVICES                GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / COMMUNITY EVENTS              200.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          200.00

  98539  QUILL CORPORATION              SUPPLIES                       PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LIBRARY                   125.84
                                        FLASHLIGHT                     PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LIBRARY                     4.99
                                        SUPPLIES                       PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LIBRARY                   113.92
                                        SUPPLIES                       GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / FINANCE DEPARTMENT             12.59
                                        SUPPLIES                       PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LIBRARY                    22.44
                                        SUPPLIES AND CALENDARS         GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / GENERAL GOVERNMENT             87.77
                                        SUPPLIES AND CALENDARS         GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / FINANCE DEPARTMENT             31.45
                                        SUPPLIES AND CALENDARS         GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / HUMAN RESOURCES                54.33
                                        SUPPLIES AND CALENDARS         GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / COMMUNITY & ECONOMIC D        105.44
                                        SUPPLIES AND CALENDARS         GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / PUBLIC WORKS ADMINISTR        161.66
                                        SUPPLIES                       GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / RECREATION DIVISION            11.24
                                        SUPPLIES AND CALENDARS         PERFORMING ARTS FUND / OPERA HOUSE                     360.23
                                        CITY HALL CLEANING SUPPLIES    GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / CITY HALL                      68.87
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        1,160.77

  98540  TAMARA REED                    SUPPLIES                       POLICE PROTECTION FUND / POLICE PROTECTION              13.39
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           13.39

  98541  RICCA CHEMICAL COMPANY         LAB SUPPLIES                   WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / WATER TREATMENT         386.03
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          386.03



DATE: 10/27/14                                           CITY OF WOODSTOCK                                                 PAGE:  12
TIME: 15:22:30                                         WARRANT NUMBER 003638
ID: AP490000.WOW

                                               FROM CHECK #  98464 TO CHECK #  98652

CHECK #  VENDOR NAME                    TRANSACTION DESCRIPTION        FUND / DEPARTMENT CHARGED                              AMOUNT
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
  98542  ANGELA RUIZ                    RECREATION INSTRUCTOR          RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREATION CENTER              80.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           80.00

  98543  RUSH TRUCK CENTER - HUNTLEY    EXHAUST                        GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREETS DIVISION              229.51
                                        PIPE                           GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREETS DIVISION              137.38
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          366.89

  98544  COLIN RITTER                   WWW POOL PAINTING              AQUATIC CENTER FUND / AQUATIC CENTER                    40.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           40.00

  98545  S&S GARDEN CENTER, INC.        LANDSCAPE MATERIALS            RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREATION CENTER             220.00
                                        COMPOST                        WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA        114.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          334.00

  98546  SCHMIDT PRINTING               WINDOW ENVELOPES               POLICE PROTECTION FUND / POLICE PROTECTION             193.00
                                        ENVELOPES                      POLICE PROTECTION FUND / POLICE PROTECTION             173.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          366.00

  98547  DAVE SCHUMACHER                DO YOU BELEIVE IN GHOSTS?      PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LIBRARY                   200.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          200.00

  98548  STAN'S OFFICE TECHNOLOGIES, IN SERVICE                        GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / FINANCE DEPARTMENT            116.54
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          116.54

  98549  STATELINE TECHNOLOGIES         MONTHLY TECH SERVICES          PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LIBRARY                 3,143.25
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        3,143.25

  98550  HARRIS COMPUTER SYSTEMS        ICONNECT MONTHLY FEES          GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / FINANCE DEPARTMENT            484.43
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          484.43

  98551  SUPER MIX, INC                 CONCRETE                       CAPITAL IMP. GEN. CORP. FUND / STREETS/SIDEWALK        703.52
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          703.52

  98552  T & H FARMS, LTD               MATERIALS                      RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREATION CENTER              60.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           60.00

  98553  THIRD MILLENNIUM               UTILITY BILL PRINTING          ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT FUND / ENVIRONMENTAL M        456.67
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          456.67



DATE: 10/27/14                                           CITY OF WOODSTOCK                                                 PAGE:  13
TIME: 15:22:31                                         WARRANT NUMBER 003638
ID: AP490000.WOW

                                               FROM CHECK #  98464 TO CHECK #  98652

CHECK #  VENDOR NAME                    TRANSACTION DESCRIPTION        FUND / DEPARTMENT CHARGED                              AMOUNT
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
  98554  TICKET RETURN SOFTWARE         ONLINE SINGLE TICKET SALES FEE DEBT SERVICE FUND / DEBT SERVICE                     1,738.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        1,738.00

  98555  TODAY'S UNIFORMS               UNIFORMS                       POLICE PROTECTION FUND / POLICE PROTECTION              81.95
                                        UNIFORMS                       POLICE PROTECTION FUND / POLICE PROTECTION              55.95
                                        UNIFORMS                       POLICE PROTECTION FUND / POLICE PROTECTION             110.95
                                        UNIFORMS                       POLICE PROTECTION FUND / POLICE PROTECTION             110.95
                                        UNIFORMS                       POLICE PROTECTION FUND / POLICE PROTECTION             110.95
                                        UNIFORMS                       POLICE PROTECTION FUND / POLICE PROTECTION             110.95
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          581.70

  98556  TOWNSQUARE PLAYERS             ADVANCE - THE MIKADO - NOVEMBE ESCROW FUND / ESCROW ACCOUNT                         2,000.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        2,000.00

  98557  KATHRYN TRIPP                  SUPPLIES                       PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LIBRARY                    19.47
                                        SUPPLIES                       PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LIBRARY                     8.78
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           28.25

  98558  TRUGREEN PROCESSING CENTER     TREATMENT - METRA STATION      PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARKS                        73.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           73.00

  98559  UNDERGROUND PIPE AND VALVE, CO MATERIALS                      WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA        319.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          319.00

  98560  USALCO                         LIQUID ALUMINUM                WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWAGE TREATMENT      5,754.14
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        5,754.14

  98561  U. S. A. BLUE BOOK             CIRCULAR CHART                 WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / WATER TREATMENT         145.78
                                        MOTOR                          WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / WATER TREATMENT         350.06
                                        MOTOR                          WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / WATER TREATMENT         350.06
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          845.90

  98562  UNIQUE MANAGEMENT SERVICES,INC COLLECTION AGENCY              PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LIBRARY                     9.95
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL            9.95

  98563  UNITED LABORATORIES            GRUNGE GRIPPERS                WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA        233.34
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          233.34



DATE: 10/27/14                                           CITY OF WOODSTOCK                                                 PAGE:  14
TIME: 15:22:31                                         WARRANT NUMBER 003638
ID: AP490000.WOW

                                               FROM CHECK #  98464 TO CHECK #  98652

CHECK #  VENDOR NAME                    TRANSACTION DESCRIPTION        FUND / DEPARTMENT CHARGED                              AMOUNT
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
  98564  U. S. POST OFFICE              POSTAGE                        GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / PUBLIC WORKS ADMINISTR         49.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           49.00

  98565  VIKING CHEMICAL COMPANY        CHEMICALS                      WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / WATER TREATMENT       1,711.00
                                        CHEMICALS                      WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / WATER TREATMENT       2,460.00
                                        CHEMICALS                      WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / WATER TREATMENT      -1,480.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        2,691.00

  98566  WAL-MART COMMUNITY             SUPPLIES                       RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREATION CENTER              39.28
                                        SUPPLIES                       RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREATION CENTER              85.09
                                        SENIORS SUPPLIES               GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / COMMUNITY EVENTS              110.86
                                        SUPPLIES                       GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / RECREATION DIVISION           100.26
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          335.49

  98567  WATER SERVICES                 REPAIR WATER METER             WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA      1,115.33
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        1,115.33

  98568  WATER RESOURCES, INC.          WATER METERS                   WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / WATER/SEWER CAPI     12,950.00
                                        WATER METERS                   WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / WATER/SEWER CAPI      4,000.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL       16,950.00

  98569  WELCH BROS., INC.              MATERIALS                      GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREETS DIVISION              170.87
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          170.87

  98570  WOODSTOCK HIGH SCHOOL          2014/15 YEAR BOOK              PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LIBRARY                    55.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           55.00

  98571  WOODSTOCK CHAMBER OF COMMERCE  COMMUNITY SIGN ADVERTISING     WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / ADMINISTRATION &        100.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          100.00

  98572  CITY OF WOODSTOCK              WATER/SEWER                    GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / FLEET MAINTENANCE             202.80
                                        WATER/SEWER                    WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWAGE TREATMENT         27.41
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          230.21

  98573  WOODSTOCK LUMBER COMPANY       STAKES                         CAPITAL IMP. GEN. CORP. FUND / STREETS/SIDEWALK         24.75
                                        RETURN                         CAPITAL IMP. GEN. CORP. FUND / STREETS/SIDEWALK        -12.87
                                        LUMBER                         CAPITAL IMP. GEN. CORP. FUND / STREETS/SIDEWALK         29.90
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           41.78



DATE: 10/27/14                                           CITY OF WOODSTOCK                                                 PAGE:  15
TIME: 15:22:31                                         WARRANT NUMBER 003638
ID: AP490000.WOW

                                               FROM CHECK #  98464 TO CHECK #  98652

CHECK #  VENDOR NAME                    TRANSACTION DESCRIPTION        FUND / DEPARTMENT CHARGED                              AMOUNT
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
  98574  WOODSTOCK NORTH HIGH SCHOOL    2014/15 YEAR BOOK              PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LIBRARY                    55.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           55.00

  98575  WOODSTOCK POWER EQUIPMENT, INC AIR FILTER                     GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREETS DIVISION              131.56
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          131.56

  98576  KIM YABLON                     RENTAL REFUND                  RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREATION CENTER              50.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           50.00

  98577  JOSE M. ZAMORANO               SERVICE                        RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREATION CENTER             120.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          120.00

  98578  DAVE ZINNEN                    BOSS BUCKS - STAFF RECOG       GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / RECREATION DIVISION           200.00
                                        LUNCH - POOL PAINTERS          RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREATION CENTER              21.58
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          221.58

  98579  MATT ZINNEN                    WWW POOL PAINTING              AQUATIC CENTER FUND / AQUATIC CENTER                   130.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          130.00

  98580  RYAN ZINNEN                    WWW POOL PAINTING              AQUATIC CENTER FUND / AQUATIC CENTER                    60.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           60.00

  98581  ZUKOWSKI, ROGERS, FLOOD &      LEGAL FEES                     GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / GENERAL GOVERNMENT          3,412.50
                                        LEGAL FEES                     POLICE PROTECTION FUND / POLICE PROTECTION           5,365.00
                                        LEGAL FEES                     GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / GENERAL GOVERNMENT          3,150.00
                                        LEGAL FEES                     POLICE PROTECTION FUND / POLICE PROTECTION           5,490.00
                                        LEGAL FEES                     GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / GENERAL GOVERNMENT            825.00
                                        LEGAL FEES                     POLICE PROTECTION FUND / POLICE PROTECTION           6,312.50
                                        LEGAL FEES                     GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / PUBLIC WORKS ADMINISTR        206.25
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL       24,761.25

  98582  A-ABLE LOCK & KEY              REAR DOOR - COURTHOUSE         TAX INCREMENT FINANCING FUND / TAX INCREMENT FI        183.92
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          183.92

  98583  CONSERV FS                     ICE MELT                       PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARKS                     1,531.25
                                        ICE MELT                       PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARKS                        50.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        1,581.25



DATE: 10/27/14                                           CITY OF WOODSTOCK                                                 PAGE:  16
TIME: 15:22:31                                         WARRANT NUMBER 003638
ID: AP490000.WOW

                                               FROM CHECK #  98464 TO CHECK #  98652

CHECK #  VENDOR NAME                    TRANSACTION DESCRIPTION        FUND / DEPARTMENT CHARGED                              AMOUNT
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
  98584  MONICA AMRAEN                  SUPPLIES                       GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / COMMUNITY EVENTS               26.39
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           26.39

  98585  AMERICAN RED CROSS -           LIFEGUARDING REVIEW ITEM LIST  AQUATIC CENTER FUND / AQUATIC CENTER                   405.00
                                        TRAINING ITEMS                 AQUATIC CENTER FUND / AQUATIC CENTER                   680.00
                                        LIFEGUARDING REVIEW ITEM LIST  AQUATIC CENTER FUND / AQUATIC CENTER                    27.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        1,112.00

  98586  ARAMARK UNIFORM SERVICE        UNIFORM RENTAL SERVICES        GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / FLEET MAINTENANCE              17.92
                                        UNIFORM RENTAL SERVICES        PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARKS                        11.20
                                        UNIFORM RENTAL SERVICES        WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA         14.56
                                        UNIFORM RENTAL SERVICES        GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREETS DIVISION               15.77
                                        UNIFORM RENTAL SERVICES        WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / WATER TREATMENT           8.85
                                        UNIFORM RENTAL SERVICES        WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / WATER TREATMENT           5.71
                                        UNIFORM RENTAL SERVICES        WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWAGE TREATMENT         11.19
                                        UNIFORM RENTAL SERVICES        POLICE PROTECTION FUND / POLICE PROTECTION              25.57
                                        UNIFORM RENTAL SERVICES        GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / FLEET MAINTENANCE             235.98
                                        UNIFORM RENTAL SERVICES        PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARKS                        10.18
                                        UNIFORM RENTAL SERVICES        WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA         78.19
                                        UNIFORM RENTAL SERVICES        GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREETS DIVISION              230.19
                                        UNIFORM RENTAL SERVICES        WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / WATER TREATMENT         120.18
                                        UNIFORM RENTAL SERVICES        WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWAGE TREATMENT         10.18
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          795.67

  98587  BELVIDERE POLICE DEPARTMENT    RANGE RENTAL SEPTEMBER         POLICE PROTECTION FUND / POLICE PROTECTION             160.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          160.00

  98588  BOHN'S ACE HARDWARE            SINGLE CUT KEYS                PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARKS                         9.96
                                        GARBAGE BAGS                   PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARKS                        12.98
                                        SUPPLIES/MATERIALS             RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREATION CENTER               8.98
                                        EXTENSION CORD                 PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARKS                         9.49
                                        SUPPLIES/MATERIALS             RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREATION CENTER              21.25
                                        SHOP SUPPLIES                  PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARKS                        41.94
                                        GALVANIZED COUPLER             PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARKS                        14.49
                                        GALVANIZED COUPLER             PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARKS                        11.08
                                        FASTENERS                      WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA         17.43
                                        LEAF RAKE                      PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARKS                         9.99
                                        SUPPLIES/MATERIALS             RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREATION CENTER              21.48



DATE: 10/27/14                                           CITY OF WOODSTOCK                                                 PAGE:  17
TIME: 15:22:32                                         WARRANT NUMBER 003638
ID: AP490000.WOW

                                               FROM CHECK #  98464 TO CHECK #  98652

CHECK #  VENDOR NAME                    TRANSACTION DESCRIPTION        FUND / DEPARTMENT CHARGED                              AMOUNT
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
  98588  BOHN'S ACE HARDWARE            CABINET LOCK                   PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARKS                        14.99
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          194.06

  98589  BONNELL INDUSTRIES, INC        LEAF VACUUM- SPARTAN LEAF PRO  ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT FUND / ENVIRONMENTAL M     64,704.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL       64,704.00

  98590  JUDITH BROWN                   RECREATION INSTRUCTION         RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREATION CENTER             128.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          128.00

  98591  CALL ONE                       PHONE CHARGES                  GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / GENERAL GOVERNMENT             58.57
                                        PHONE CHARGES                  GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / FINANCE DEPARTMENT            268.81
                                        PHONE CHARGES                  GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / HUMAN RESOURCES               112.80
                                        PHONE CHARGES                  GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / COMMUNITY & ECONOMIC D         58.57
                                        PHONE CHARGES                  GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / PUBLIC WORKS ADMINISTR        829.83
                                        PHONE CHARGES                  GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / RECREATION DIVISION            90.47
                                        PHONE CHARGES                  RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREATION CENTER             156.71
                                        PHONE CHARGES                  POLICE PROTECTION FUND / POLICE PROTECTION           4,421.63
                                        PHONE CHARGES                  PERFORMING ARTS FUND / OPERA HOUSE                     323.76
                                        PHONE CHARGES                  PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LIBRARY                   156.71
                                        PHONE CHARGES                  WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / WATER TREATMENT       2,036.44
                                        PHONE CHARGES                  WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWAGE TREATMENT        257.30
                                        PHONE CHARGES                  WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA        792.12
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        9,563.72

  98592  CARDINAL TRACKING              SYSTEM SOFTWARE LICENSE        POLICE PROTECTION FUND / POLICE PROTECTION           2,948.90
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        2,948.90

  98593  CENTEGRA OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH   TESTING SERVICE                GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / HUMAN RESOURCES                25.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           25.00

  98594  COMCAST CABLE                  COMMUNICATIONS                 PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LIBRARY                   134.85
                                        COMMUNICATIONS                 POLICE PROTECTION FUND / POLICE PROTECTION             212.90
                                        COMMUNICATIONS                 PERFORMING ARTS FUND / OPERA HOUSE                     122.90
                                        COMMUNICATIONS                 AQUATIC CENTER FUND / AQUATIC CENTER                    82.90
                                        COMMUNICATIONS                 WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / WATER TREATMENT          82.90
                                        COMMUNICATIONS                 WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWAGE TREATMENT         82.90
                                        COMMUNICATIONS                 GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / PUBLIC WORKS ADMINISTR        137.85
                                        COMMUNICATIONS                 WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWAGE TREATMENT         82.90



DATE: 10/27/14                                           CITY OF WOODSTOCK                                                 PAGE:  18
TIME: 15:22:32                                         WARRANT NUMBER 003638
ID: AP490000.WOW

                                               FROM CHECK #  98464 TO CHECK #  98652

CHECK #  VENDOR NAME                    TRANSACTION DESCRIPTION        FUND / DEPARTMENT CHARGED                              AMOUNT
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
  98594  COMCAST CABLE                  COMMUNICATIONS                 GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / FINANCE DEPARTMENT            232.85
                                        COMMUNICATIONS                 RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREATION CENTER             112.90
                                        COMMUNICATIONS                 GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / RECREATION DIVISION             4.26
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        1,290.11

  98595  CONSTELLATION NEWENERGY        ELECTRIC SERVICE               WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA        162.43
                                        ELECTRIC SERVICE               RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREATION CENTER           2,177.14
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        2,339.57

  98596  THE COPY EXPRESS, INC.         GIRLS SOFTBALL TOURNEY         GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / RECREATION DIVISION             6.23
                                        CARE 4                         RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREATION CENTER              19.37
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           25.60

  98597  CORKSCREW GYMNASTICS AND SPORT RECREATION INSTRUCTOR          GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / RECREATION DIVISION           350.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          350.00

  98598  EXCAVATING CONCEPTS, INC.      WANDA LANE DRAINAGE IMPROVE    GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREETS DIVISION            8,720.00
                                        STORM SEWER IMPR- LAKE AVE.    GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREETS DIVISION            3,850.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL       12,570.00

  98599  EXPRESS SERVICES INC           LABOR                          GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREETS DIVISION            1,280.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        1,280.00

  98600  FOX VALLEY FIRE & SAFETY CO.   ALARM MONITORING               WIRELESS ALARM MONITORING / WIRELESS ALARM MONI      1,755.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        1,755.00

  98601  JAMES FRANKLIN                 OFFICIAL'S SERVICES            GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / RECREATION DIVISION            72.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           72.00

  98602  FRIENDS OF THE OPERA           CLOSEOUT AUCTION               ESCROW FUND / ESCROW ACCOUNT                         2,916.87
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        2,916.87

  98603  GESKE & SONS, INC.             POLYMER PATCH                  GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREETS DIVISION            2,432.50
                                        RECYCLED MODIFIED SURFACE MIX  GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREETS DIVISION              635.47
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        3,067.97

  98604  HD SUPPLY                      MATERIALS                      WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA        101.95
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          101.95



DATE: 10/27/14                                           CITY OF WOODSTOCK                                                 PAGE:  19
TIME: 15:22:32                                         WARRANT NUMBER 003638
ID: AP490000.WOW

                                               FROM CHECK #  98464 TO CHECK #  98652

CHECK #  VENDOR NAME                    TRANSACTION DESCRIPTION        FUND / DEPARTMENT CHARGED                              AMOUNT
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
  98605  CHAS. HERDRICH & SON, INC.     SUPPLIES                       PERFORMING ARTS FUND / CAFE                            112.25
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          112.25

  98606  HIZEL PLUMBING                 PLUMBING REPAIRS- RESTAURANT   TAX INCREMENT FINANCING FUND / TAX INCREMENT FI      5,628.50
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        5,628.50

  98607  IN THE SWIM                    POOL SUPPLIES                  RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREATION CENTER             215.96
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          215.96

  98608  JOHN WHITE STABLES             HORSEBACK RIDING               GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / RECREATION DIVISION           200.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          200.00

  98609  ANITA JOHNSON                  RECREATION INSTRUCTION         RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREATION CENTER             581.25
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          581.25

  98610  RC JUGGLES                     ENTERTAINMENT                  GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / COMMUNITY EVENTS              150.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          150.00

  98611  DON KAMPS                      RECREATION OFFICIAL            GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / RECREATION DIVISION            72.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           72.00

  98612  L & V DISTRIBUTORS             STAGE LEFT CAFE SUPPLIES       PERFORMING ARTS FUND / CAFE                             32.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           32.00

  98613  PATRICK LOUISE                 RENTAL REFUND                  RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREATION CENTER              50.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           50.00

  98614  LLOYD'S PAINT AND PAPER, INC.  PAINT                          RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREATION CENTER              42.26
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           42.26

  98615  JOSHUA LONGHI                  OVER PAID PARKING TICKET       POLICE PROTECTION FUND / POLICE PROTECTION              30.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           30.00

  98616  MDC ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES     RECYCLE TOTERS                 ESCROW FUND / ESCROW ACCOUNT                           300.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          300.00

  98617  MCHENRY COUNTY COUNCIL OF      MEETINGS EXPENSE               GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / GENERAL GOVERNMENT            114.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          114.00



DATE: 10/27/14                                           CITY OF WOODSTOCK                                                 PAGE:  20
TIME: 15:22:32                                         WARRANT NUMBER 003638
ID: AP490000.WOW

                                               FROM CHECK #  98464 TO CHECK #  98652

CHECK #  VENDOR NAME                    TRANSACTION DESCRIPTION        FUND / DEPARTMENT CHARGED                              AMOUNT
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
  98618  MC HENRY COUNTY DIVISION OF    PACE SERVICES - JULY 2014      PARATRANSIT FUND / PARATRANSIT                       3,676.43
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        3,676.43

  98619  MC HENRY COUNTY ECONOMIC       MCEDC ANNUAL DINNER            GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / COMMUNITY & ECONOMIC D        800.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          800.00

  98620  MC HENRY COUNTY PLANNING       REGISTRATION                   GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / PUBLIC WORKS ADMINISTR         25.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           25.00

  98621  MENARDS                        MATERIALS & SUPPLIES           PERFORMING ARTS FUND / OPERA HOUSE                      29.91
                                        MATERIALS & SUPPLIES           PERFORMING ARTS FUND / OPERA HOUSE                     -19.97
                                        REPAIR STAGE POWER DISTRIBUTIO PERFORMING ARTS FUND / OPERA HOUSE                      23.88
                                        ELECTRICAL UPGRADES - SHOP     PERFORMING ARTS FUND / OPERA HOUSE                      29.92
                                        ELECTRICAL UPGRADES - SHOP     PERFORMING ARTS FUND / OPERA HOUSE                      27.26
                                        BUILDING XMAS LIGHTING PROJECT TAX INCREMENT FINANCING FUND / TAX INCREMENT FI         14.38
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          105.38

  98622  METRO PROFESSIONAL PRODUCTS, I SUPPLIES                       GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / FLEET MAINTENANCE              84.45
                                        SUPPLIES                       WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWAGE TREATMENT         45.03
                                        SUPPLIES                       GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / FLEET MAINTENANCE              45.02
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          174.50

  98623  MILLER ENGINEERING CO.         COURTHOUSE HVAC REPAIR         TAX INCREMENT FINANCING FUND / TAX INCREMENT FI      1,151.45
                                        COURTHOUSE HVAC REPAIR         TAX INCREMENT FINANCING FUND / TAX INCREMENT FI      1,043.75
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        2,195.20

  98624  MILLER MONUMENT COMPANY        LETTERED BRICK PAVERS          ESCROW FUND / ESCROW ACCOUNT                           172.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          172.00

  98625  NAPOLI PIZZA                   STAFF                          GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / RECREATION DIVISION            18.00
                                        STAFF                          GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / RECREATION DIVISION            30.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           48.00

  98626  NIERMAN LANDSCAPE & DESIGN     BRICK REPAIR                   TAX INCREMENT FINANCING FUND / TAX INCREMENT FI        400.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          400.00

  98627  NICOR                          UTILITY-GAS                    WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA         82.02
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           82.02



DATE: 10/27/14                                           CITY OF WOODSTOCK                                                 PAGE:  21
TIME: 15:22:32                                         WARRANT NUMBER 003638
ID: AP490000.WOW

                                               FROM CHECK #  98464 TO CHECK #  98652

CHECK #  VENDOR NAME                    TRANSACTION DESCRIPTION        FUND / DEPARTMENT CHARGED                              AMOUNT
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
  98628  JIM OLSON COLLISION            2006 CHEVY PICKUP REPAIR       WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA      1,265.30
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        1,265.30

  98629  POOLBLU                        SERVICE CALL                   RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREATION CENTER             181.77
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          181.77

  98630  PORT-A-JOHN                    RENTAL SERVICES                GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / COMMUNITY EVENTS              100.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          100.00

  98631  QUILL CORPORATION              CALENDARS                      PERFORMING ARTS FUND / OPERA HOUSE                      15.28
                                        FILE LABELS                    WIRELESS ALARM MONITORING / WIRELESS ALARM MONI         14.36
                                        CALENDAR                       GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / PUBLIC WORKS ADMINISTR         11.69
                                        INK CARTRIDGE                  GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / PUBLIC WORKS ADMINISTR         82.79
                                        PAPER CLIPS                    GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / FINANCE DEPARTMENT              5.49
                                        STAPLER                        GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / FINANCE DEPARTMENT             19.79
                                        SUPPLIES                       POLICE PROTECTION FUND / POLICE PROTECTION             146.73
                                        DRY ERASE MARKERS              GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / PUBLIC WORKS ADMINISTR          8.29
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          304.42

  98632  AIMEE REESE                    POOL PAINTING                  AQUATIC CENTER FUND / AQUATIC CENTER                    54.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           54.00

  98633  ROTARY CLUB OF WOODSTOCK       DUES                           GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / RECREATION DIVISION           225.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          225.00

  98634  DEAN ROWE                      PROMOTIONAL VIDEO              GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / COMMUNITY EVENTS              500.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          500.00

  98635  ERIN SARICH                    PAINTED WWW                    AQUATIC CENTER FUND / AQUATIC CENTER                    72.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           72.00

  98636  SNI SOLUTIONS                  BIOMELT                        ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT FUND / ENVIRONMENTAL M      6,230.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        6,230.00

  98637  THOMPSON ELEVATOR INSPECTION   INSPECTION SERVICES            GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / COMMUNITY & ECONOMIC D        369.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          369.00

  98638  THOMPSON ELEVATOR INSPECTION   ELEVATOR - CITY HALL           GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / CITY HALL                     175.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          175.00



DATE: 10/27/14                                           CITY OF WOODSTOCK                                                 PAGE:  22
TIME: 15:22:32                                         WARRANT NUMBER 003638
ID: AP490000.WOW

                                               FROM CHECK #  98464 TO CHECK #  98652

CHECK #  VENDOR NAME                    TRANSACTION DESCRIPTION        FUND / DEPARTMENT CHARGED                              AMOUNT
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
  98639  TODAY'S UNIFORMS               UNIFORMS                       POLICE PROTECTION FUND / POLICE PROTECTION             110.95
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          110.95

  98640  U. S. A. BLUE BOOK             BOOT BRUSHES PW ENTRANCES      GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / FLEET MAINTENANCE             238.33
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          238.33

  98641  UPLAND CONSTRUCTION &          REMOVE/REPLACE CURB            TAX INCREMENT FINANCING FUND / TAX INCREMENT FI      9,632.50
                                        REMOVE/REPLACE  SIDEWALK DEAN  CAPITAL IMP. GEN. CORP. FUND / STREETS/SIDEWALK      9,410.40
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL       19,042.90

  98642  VERIZON WIRELESS               WIRELESS                       GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / GENERAL GOVERNMENT             37.73
                                        WIRELESS                       GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / FINANCE DEPARTMENT             70.07
                                        WIRELESS                       POLICE PROTECTION FUND / POLICE PROTECTION              70.23
                                        WIRELESS                       GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / COMMUNITY & ECONOMIC D        159.00
                                        WIRELESS-PW ADMIN              GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / PUBLIC WORKS ADMINISTR         95.45
                                        WIRELESS-BUILDING/EQUIPMENT    GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / PUBLIC WORKS ADMINISTR         34.85
                                        WIRELESS-PARKS                 GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / PUBLIC WORKS ADMINISTR        191.69
                                        WIRELESS-STREETS               GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / PUBLIC WORKS ADMINISTR        169.40
                                        WIRELESS                       GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / RECREATION DIVISION           143.06
                                        WIRELESS                       WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA         79.29
                                        WIRELESS                       WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / WATER TREATMENT         115.73
                                        WIRELESS                       WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWAGE TREATMENT        121.20
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        1,287.70

  98643  WATER RESOURCES, INC.          WATER METERS                   WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / WATER/SEWER CAPI      1,860.00
                                        WATER METERS                   WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / WATER/SEWER CAPI      2,550.00
                                        WATER METERS                   WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / WATER/SEWER CAPI        435.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        4,845.00

  98644  TERRY WILLCOCKSON              DD TO INCORRECT ACCT NUMBER    GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / GENERAL                       500.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          500.00

  98645  WOODSTOCK CHAMBER OF COMMERCE  MEMBERSHIP DUES                GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / GENERAL GOVERNMENT          1,050.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        1,050.00

  98646  CITY OF WOODSTOCK              PETTY CASH - POSTAGE           POLICE PROTECTION FUND / POLICE PROTECTION             126.66
                                        PETTY CASH - STICKER REFUND    ESCROW FUND / ESCROW ACCOUNT                             1.44
                                        PETTY CASH - NOTARY            GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / COMMUNITY & ECONOMIC D         10.00



DATE: 10/27/14                                           CITY OF WOODSTOCK                                                 PAGE:  23
TIME: 15:22:33                                         WARRANT NUMBER 003638
ID: AP490000.WOW

                                               FROM CHECK #  98464 TO CHECK #  98652

CHECK #  VENDOR NAME                    TRANSACTION DESCRIPTION        FUND / DEPARTMENT CHARGED                              AMOUNT
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
  98646  CITY OF WOODSTOCK              PETTY CASH - SUPPLIES          GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / HUMAN RESOURCES                 7.27
                                        PETTY CASH - EMPLOYEE REC      GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / HUMAN RESOURCES                43.00
                                        PETTY CASH - DOCUMENT COPY     GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / COMMUNITY & ECONOMIC D          3.00
                                        PETTY CASH - SUPPLIES          POLICE PROTECTION FUND / POLICE PROTECTION               6.20
                                        PETTY CASH - MEETING           POLICE PROTECTION FUND / POLICE PROTECTION              45.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          242.57

  98647  WOODSTOCK DIST 200             RENTAL REFUND                  PERFORMING ARTS FUND / CAFE                            100.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          100.00

  98648  WOODSTOCK FINE ARTS ASSN.      CREATIVE LIVING OCT 16, 2014   ESCROW FUND / ESCROW ACCOUNT                         5,153.25
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        5,153.25

  98649  WOODSTOCK INDEPENDENT          SUBSCRIPTION                   GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / RECREATION DIVISION            35.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           35.00

  98650  WOODSTOCK INDEPENDENT          ADVERTISING                    AQUATIC CENTER FUND / AQUATIC CENTER                   225.50
                                        FLIERS INTO PAPER              RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREATION CENTER             960.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        1,185.50

  98651  WOODSTOCK MUSICAL THEATRE CO.  LITTLE SHOP OF HORRORS OCT 201 ESCROW FUND / ESCROW ACCOUNT                        13,010.69
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL       13,010.69

  98652  ZUKOWSKI, ROGERS, FLOOD &      LEGAL FEES                     GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / COMMUNITY & ECONOMIC D        225.00
                                        LEGAL FEES                     GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / COMMUNITY & ECONOMIC D      2,662.50
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        2,887.50

                                                                                                       WARRANT TOTAL      348,416.40





City of Woodstock

Credit Card Activity (FirstMerit Bank)

Closing Date 10-1-14

ACCOUNT VENDOR DESCRIPTION Amount

72-00-0-215 PAYFLOW/PAYPALL TICKET REVENUE 54.10$                   

Kastner

Lowen

Stelford

Christensen

01-03-4-452 MARRIOTT CONF IGFOA HOTEL 143.36$                 

Sager

Carlson

01-05-4-452 IN NORTHERN IL CONTINUING EDUCA 125.00$                 

01-05-5-515 REALTOR ASSO MEETING EXPENSE 70.00$                   

01-05-5-515 ICSC NEW YORK ICSC REGISTRATION 295.00$                 

Ruscko

60-53-4-452 AMER WATER WORKS ASSO TRAINING-GARRISON 48.00$                   

01-08-4-452 AMERICAN PUBLIC WORKS TRAINING 70.00$                   

60-53-6-606 SWISS MAID BAKERY RETIREMENT - LESTER 59.50$                   

Scharres

07-11-6-606 SHOPKEEP CAFÉ' SUPPLIES 49.00$                   

07-11-5-501 HOMESTEAD WEBSITE 19.99$                   

41-00-7-732 NORTHERN TOOL UTILITY WINCH 336.38$                 

Schober

21-00-6-606 DXE MEDICAL INC PADS FOR AED'S 166.00$                 

01-04-4-452 NATL PULBLIC EMPLOYER ROOM RSVP 299.00$                 

Weber

08-00-7-740 NETFLIX LIBRARY MATERIALS 43.99$                   

08-00-6-606 HOME OF THE SPARROW YA Program Supplies 28.36$                   

08-00-7-740 READ BETWEEN THE LYNES Children's Book 12.84$                   

08-00-6-606 SWISS MAID BAKERY ART GALLERY RECEPT 12.20$                   

08-00-6-606 WALMART SUPPLIES 37.33$                   

01-09-6-606 PLUG N PAY INC WEB RECEIPTS 63.22$                   

01-09-6-606 PLUG N PAY INC WEB RECEIPTS 15.00$                   

05-00-7-720 DIRECT PARTITIONS MATERIALS 609.00$                 



City of Woodstock

Credit Card Activity (FirstMerit Bank)

Closing Date 10-1-14

ACCOUNT VENDOR DESCRIPTION Amount

Zinnen

04-00-6-606 THE WEBSTAURANT STORE WWW CHANGE TABLE 16.06$                   

01-09-5-501 NCROWD.COM 20.00$                   

05-00-6-612 RADIOSHACK RADIO UNIT CLASS 28.99$                   

05-00-6-612 COLEMAN'S REC CENTER LUNCH 42.75$                   

05-00-6-612 SUBWAY PLAY ROOM MTG 34.89$                   

01-09-6-606 WALMART OFFICE SUPPLIES 20.29$                   

05-00-6-621 FILTERS FAST FURNACE AIR FILTERS 399.92$                 

01-09-6-612 AMAZON MARKETPLACE PROGRAM SUPPLIES 19.95$                   

05-00-6-612 LEGO SHOP FOR PLAY ROOM 42.42$                   

01-09-6-612 OMNI CHEER POMS FOR DANCE CLS 214.80$                 

01-09-6-612 PANDA GARDEN REC CENT STAFF MTG 72.10$                   

01-09-6-612 KINGSTON LANES VOLUNTEER APP 170.00$                 

01-09-6-612 AMAZON MARKETPLACE PROGRAM SUPPLIES 19.95$                   

01-09-6-612 T J MAXX PROGRAM SUPPLIES 50.00$                   

05-00-7-720 NEUMAN POOLS INSTALL NEW POOL HEATER 1,237.58$              

01-09-6-612 GEORGIOS CHICAGO PIZZA BECKY BIRTHDAY 89.53$                   

McElmeel

01-09-6-606 AMAZON MARKETPLACE WIRELESS APS 198.48$                 

82-03-7-716 AMAZON MARKETPLACE NETWORK SWITCH 94.89$                   

82-03-7-716 AMAZON MARKETPLACE WIRELESS APS 918.00$                 

82-01-7-704 AMAZON COM COMPUTER HARDWARE 41.93$                   

07-11-6-621 B & H PHOTO VIDEO BATTERY BACKUP 82.99$                   

60-50-6-621 AMAZON MARKETPLACE SURGE PROTECTOR 48.99$                   

01-09-6-606 AMAZON MARKETPLACE PHONE CASE 29.00$                   

Lieb

03-00-4-452 INSPRA TRAINING 20.00$                   

Total 6,470.78$              





 
CITY OF WOODSTOCK 

Historic Preservation Commission 
September 8, 2014 

City Council Chambers 
 
I.  CALL TO ORDER 
The special meeting of the Woodstock Historic Preservation Commission was called to order at 
7:00 PM by Chairman Allen Stebbins on Monday, September 8, 2014 in Council Chambers at 
City Hall.  
 
COMMISSION MEMBERS PRESENT:  Rodney Paglialong, Chairman Allen Stebbins, Erica 
Wilson 
 
COMMISSION MEMBERS ABSENT: Jodie Kurtz-Osborne 
 
STAFF PRESENT:  City Planner Nancy Baker 
 
OTHERS PRESENT: City Clerk Dianne Mitchell 
 
II. APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 
Motion by R. Paglialong, second by E. Wilson to approve the July 28, 2014 minutes of the 
Woodstock HPC as submitted. Ayes: Chairman Stebbins, R. Paglialong, E. Wilson. Nays: None. 
Absentees: J. Kurtz-Osborne. Abstentions: None. Motion carried. 
 
III. PUBLIC COMMENT 
No comments from public. 
 
IV. GENERAL BUSINESS 
A. 101 N. Johnson Street—Certificate of Appropriateness to replace ground floor entrance 
 door and install trim 
  
Kathryn Loprino, 668 W. South St, Woodstock, reported that at this time they are just going for 
the approval of the door and not the build-out around it.  She stated that she included a door 
drawing with the COA application and advised that it will fall in line with the architecture of the 
building.  She advised that it is all wood and glass noting that the transom above will be crafted 
in two separate pieces and join them so it will look like it was years back.  She reported that Blue 
Ribbon will be doing the install. 
 
E. Wilson questioned if the opening will remain the same size and K. Loprino affirmed.  A. 
Stebbins questioned if the door will be painted or a wood door.  K. Loprino stated that she prefers 
that it stays wood noting that it why they had discussed coverage so the sun doesn’t beat on it 
constantly.  A. Stebbins questioned if there is a color stain for it.  K. Loprino advised that there 
isn’t and noted that they are open to guidance on it.  
 
R. Paglialong questioned if the glass will be clear or frosted. K. Loprino advised that it will be 
clear with their logo on the glass.  A. Stebbins questioned the transom and she stated that it will 
be opaque. A. Stebbins stated that it will be dark glass because the ceiling comes down below the 
transoms and there is wood behind there.  K. Loprino advised that they can mimic window but 
there can’t actually be glass so they talked about doing a dark opaque glass. R. Paglialong 
questioned if a solid piece of glass would look better and K. Loprino advised that the one with 
the two pieces mimics what is already there.   
 



    Historic Preservation Commission 
    9/8/14 
    Page 2 of 11 
 
E. Wilson referenced the top photo on Page 3 and questioned the time period it falls in and 
whether it is within the target time period for restoration.  N. Baker stated that it is early 1900’s.  
E. Wilson stated that she likes the glass in the door, but wanted to bring up the fact that the door 
in the photo which falls within the time period doesn’t have glass in the lower part of the door. K. 
Loprino stated that looking at the space they are looking at providing in there having glass would 
be keynote for having a hostess and greeting.  
 
R. Paglialong advised that he doesn’t have a problem with it being glass as opposed to a solid 
paneled door. E. Wilson stated that there are other doors on the building that have glass but noted 
that she felt she should bring it up. A. Stebbins referenced the photo on Page 4 with the 
windbreak entrance and stated that it looks like there were wood panels below with glass on the 
top.  In response to A. Stebbins, N. Baker stated that it is 1960’s.  E. Wilson stated that on the 
picture she was talking about, the main doors of the Old Courthouse have a bottom that is opaque 
with glass above so she thinks it would be fine. 
 
R. Paglialong questioned if the Commission has any concerns or preference regarding staining or 
painting on the door.  K. Loprino stated that it won’t be painted.  E. Wilson stated that it was 
painted in the historic photo.  R. Paglialong stated that he thinks paint would be better noting that 
paint will last much longer than stain.  K. Loprino advised that they are open to whatever the 
color scheme is going to be for the other doors on the building. 
 
A. Stebbins noted that the Commission is approving the door only and the group discussed the 
findings of fact.  A. Stebbins noted that they recommend paint as it is more durable than stain.  
The group felt the new door and materials meet the design guidelines and will have a positive 
impact on the building, the neighboring buildings, the surrounding area and the historic district. 
 
Motion by R. Paglialong, second by E. Wilson to approve the Certificate of Appropriateness for 
101 N. Johnson Street to replace ground floor entrance door with the recommendation to paint 
the door.  Ayes: Chairman Stebbins, R. Paglialong, E. Wilson. Nays: None. Absentees: J. Kurtz-
Osborne. Abstentions: None. Motion carried. 
   
B. 125 E. Calhoun Street—Certificate of Appropriateness to install stone on the front 
 façade 
The petitioner for Barbecue King did not show up for the meeting. 
 
C. 107-109 Van Buren Street—Certificate of Appropriateness to replace second and third 
 story windows 
Cary Cook, 2515 Raycraft Rd, Woodstock, stated that the new windows were quoted to replace 
the existing style that is there now but without grills. He advised that they will be a wood interior 
with aluminum clad on the outside. He reported that they started the project with the fire that 
occurred at 109 Van Buren which is when they started a project to change the window style to a 
dark bronze; he provided the Commission with a sample of the color.  He advised that their color 
change request is to go to a dark bronze that will make the lower level color. 
 
C. Cook stated that there are two sets of windows in each opening and noted that they would be 
taken out and there will be a frame necessary built around the sides.  He noted that they will 
insert the windows into the existing opens with no changes to the façade.  He advised that the 
existing windows are built behind the brick façade that was applied to the building in the past so 
they have to be dug out which will create a cavity that will be filled with Windsor pine which has 



    Historic Preservation Commission 
    9/8/14 
    Page 3 of 11 
 
a rot preventative in it. He stated that the windows will be more contemporary and energy 
efficient and still maintain the integrity of the historical aspect of the building for that time 
period. He noted that it is a 6-8 week order time which puts them at the end of November. 
 
E. Wilson questioned if the sills will be affected and C. Cook advised that they will not.  R. 
Paglialong recommended that the lintels be scraped and painted.  C. Cook advised that it is part 
of the quote.   
 
A. Stebbins questioned when the vinyl windows were replaced and N. Baker believes it was the 
early 1990’s.  A. Stebbins stated that this is a classic example of why vinyl windows aren’t 
approved in the district because of what happened to this building.  R. Paglialong stated that they 
do not last.  E. Wilson added that they were installed poorly as well.  A. Stebbins advised that the 
only alternative is replacement windows.  
 
E. Wilson stated that she thinks it is fine without the grills on the windows and noted that it is too 
bad that since they are being replaced it is too bad that they can’t be how they originally were 
with the three windows.  C. Cook advised that they did present that to the owner; however, his 
feeling was that the reduction in size on the windows would limit some air flow.  E. Wilson 
stated that her only consideration would be to try to look as much like the original windows that 
were installed.  She stated that a lot of the upper windows on the Square are similar but whether 
it is correct or not is debatable.  
 
A. Stebbins questioned if in the 1950’s when it was remodeled were they always apartments or 
were they offices.  He stated that the idea of the Chicago style windows evokes a professional 
office type of look where as the use is now residential apartment.  He would go for the project as 
presented without the imitation grills because it comes closer to simulating that expansive glass 
from the Chicago style window but gives the residents the opportunity to raise the windows for 
air flow.  E. Wilson stated that she is fine with it, but she thinks it is something the Commission 
should discuss. She stated that the use of the spaces has changed and this lends itself more to a 
residential type of use. 
 
The Commission completed the findings of fact stated that the new windows meet the design 
guidelines and the proposed project will have a positive impact on the building, the neighboring 
buildings, the surrounding area and the overall historic district. 
 
Motion by E. Wilson, second by R. Paglialong to approve the COA for 107-109 Van Buren 
Street to replace second and third story windows. Ayes: Chairman Stebbins, R. Paglialong, E. 
Wilson. Nays: None. Absentees: J. Kurtz-Osborne. Abstentions: None. Motion carried. 
 
D. 112-114 Cass Street—Certificate of Appropriateness to replace second story windows on 
 Main Street side and Discussion of future window replacement on Cass Street side 
C. Cook stated that the windows on both sides of the building are deteriorating; the glazing, 
caulking, sills, sashes and paint.  E. Wilson questioned if they are original windows and C. Cook 
advised that they are fairly original but he believes the building was changed and modified.  N. 
Baker thinks they are early 20th century windows based on comparing them to original photos.  
C. Cook stated that the windows are painted shut so they don’t allow any functionality and he 
noted that the wood is split.  He advised that you can put all the paint you want it but there will 
be holes back in the wood and paint deteriorating.  He stated that it looks like the surface of it in 
the past was only skimmed painted and none of the problems were corrected. 



    Historic Preservation Commission 
    9/8/14 
    Page 4 of 11 
 
 
E. Wilson questioned the condition of the wood and C. Cook stated that the wood is rotting out in 
corners.  He stated that sashes are rotting out and where the sashes come together are sinking.  He 
stated that because of rot water is infiltrating down behind the glazing. R. Paglialong advised that 
he just did work in the office and noted that they had to replace the drywall on the soffit above 
the window which may be coming from the window above. He stated that all the soffits had 
mold.  C. Cook discussed the leakage and rot issues of the building and the steps they have taken.   
 
A. Stebbins stated that the request is for the aluminum clad wood windows and advised that they 
are proposing the same windows as the Van Buren property but he thinks this particular window 
is too modern looking on the profile.  C. Cook stated that it is a flat profile and provided a sample 
of the frame to the Commission. E. Wilson asked if they looked into having the windows 
repaired.  C. Cook advised that they looked into it for the front but it was costly.  He noted that 
you can do some repair but advised that it is going to be very difficult to maintain them.  
 
A. Stebbins questioned if the decorative arch above the window won’t be changed. C. Cook 
advised that they are going to try to preserve the decorative arch.  He stated that it looks like it 
doesn’t get as much abuse so when they bring it down they will assess the condition but the 
intent is to put it back up there.  He stated that the other option is to get an aluminum piece and 
redo the shapes that exist on the arch.  R. Paglialong asked if the material is currently wood and 
C. Cook believes it is wood.  A. Stebbins stated that it is carved and advised that he wouldn’t 
want to see it changed at all noting that if a piece broke during repair it needs be restored and 
replicated because they are defining features of that building.   
 
E. Wilson questioned if the windows will change in size because they are putting a frame all 
around it.  C. Cook advised that they will not because the board that is there right now is about 
the same. He reviewed how the frame would be constructed.   
 
R. Paglialong questioned how the area where the window meets the bottom of the arch will be 
sealed and whether there will need to be some flashing.  C. Cook advised that it will need some 
flashing or a drip edge noting that it looks like a 3/8” gap which might allow a bead of caulk.  E. 
Wilson questioned if the metal will be forward and C. Cook advised that it will either be butted 
up against the bottom or be formed out behind the transom and come out to have a drip edge.  He 
noted that they will be using the company Classic who is very concerned with drip points and 
will design something that will work for them. 
 
A. Stebbins questioned if he had an estimate for restoration of the windows and C. Cook advised 
that he only has it for the front side; the Cass St. side.  C. Cook advised that the quote from 
Renaissance for the east side is for the same window that Classic is presenting but their bid was 
more.  He stated that they would restore the wood on the framing but they would replace it with a 
sash that is aluminum clad and cover the exposed side with aluminum wrap.  He stated that it is 
the same thing that Classic is going to do, retain the framing, put the window in the existing sash 
opening and clad the outside with aluminum.  
 
The Commission discussed the preservation estimate from Renaissance. A. Stebbins stated that 
E. Wilson raised the question that since these are historic windows, was there an estimate to 
restore the windows; do and actual historic restoration.  He stated that Renaissance is proposing a 
partial restoration which is twice the cost of what Classic is doing.  He noted that he isn’t one to 



    Historic Preservation Commission 
    9/8/14 
    Page 5 of 11 
 
replace historic windows but in this instance the windows are pretty severely deteriorated and 
there is the issue with winter coming.   
 
E. Wilson advised that she has seen pictures of case studies that look worse and they are able to 
be repaired, but she knows it comes down to cost.  C. Cook stated that when you are talking 
about the whole sill and the bottom has cracks, in his opinion it is a disaster waiting for happen. 
In response to E. Wilson, C. Cook stated that he doesn’t know how long the windows have been 
like this and noted that from day one that he has worked on the building he has indicated to the 
owner that he has serious window problems.  He stated that he thinks the owner has been in there 
for fifteen years.  E. Wilson stated that in theory even if he had replaced one window a year he 
could have fixed all his windows for not a whole lot of money over time.   
 
C. Cook advised that the windows have been painted, glazed and caulked in the past but if they 
are not repaired properly the water continues to come.  R. Paglialong guessed that it would be 
about $1500 to repair each window. He stated that based on what he sees the windows are 
beyond repair noting that he isn’t one to replace historical windows.  He stated that he is not 
opposed to replacement windows in this instance.  He questioned if the Commission wants to 
have him bring an estimate for repair.  He stated that it could be repaired but noted the checking 
in the wood and jam and that he sees a lot of rot. 
 
In response to E. Wilson, N. Baker stated that the east half of the building was built in 1881.  E. 
Wilson referenced the historical photos and advised that these are the original windows from 
1881 and noted that we don’t have many buildings left that have their true, original windows.  N. 
Baker referenced the photo and stated that it doesn’t look like there is the same brick mold that is 
on the current windows and the rails look thinner.  A. Stebbins stated that it almost looks like it 
was built up on the outside with wood at some point later on and he is seeing a brick recess. The 
Commission reviewed the different photos of the windows and they believe that the windows are 
original and the outside pieces were added later to accommodate a storm window.   
 
E. Wilson stated that her concern is if these are original windows on one of the oldest building on 
the Square should they be demolished because of negligence.  She stated that it is a contributing 
building in the historic district.  A. Stebbins thinks the building has two primary facades. 
 
The Commission reviewed the findings of fact.  They believe the proposed construction will 
destroy historic materials or exterior features that characterize the property.  In response to the 
question of whether alternative measures and designs were investigated, they felt somewhat 
noting that they don’t have a cost for a complete window restoration. In response to whether the 
Commission is aware of alternative measures of products that should be utilized, the Commission 
affirmed that they discussed restoration of original windows. The Commission believes the 
proposed project would have a negative impact on the preservation and conservation of the 
structure because it would remove historic material. They believe the proposed project would 
have a neutral impact on adjoining structures and the proposed project will be a major alteration 
to the structure.  A. Stebbins believes with photographic evidence the windows are original. They 
believe the new windows do meet the design guidelines as an alternative. 
 
In response to the question of what the overall impact of the proposed project will have on the 
building, E. Wilson stated that historically negative, but as far as for the building positive.  A. 
Stebbins advised that they are talking about the proposed project which is to remove historic 
windows and stated that it will have a negative impact on the building.  E. Wilson felt the project 



    Historic Preservation Commission 
    9/8/14 
    Page 6 of 11 
 
will have a neutral impact on the surrounding buildings and some felt it would be a negative 
impact to the surrounding area because losing a prominent feature of the building lessons the 
overall quality of the historic district.  R. Paglialong believes it is neutral and stated that they 
have one quote to replace them for $15,000 and another quote to repair and replace the sashes for 
$30,000 and he imagines that to restore them would cost a lot more.  He questioned if restoration 
is something they want to force the owner to do.   
 
E. Wilson stated that they can’t force them to do anything but as a Commission it is their job is to 
look at the historical viewpoint even though they recognize the other viewpoints.  She stated that 
these are original windows on one of the older buildings on the Square and it is worth preserving 
if it can be preserved.  She questioned if all the windows are at an equal amount of disrepair and 
whether it could it be phased so that the cost wouldn’t be so great all at once.  C. Cook stated that 
they are not all in the same condition, but noted that the issue with phasing is time.  He advised 
that the window on the front side in between the time the vendors came to bid the project and 
now, the window has collapsed.  He stated that this is an example of time where water infiltration 
and doing nothing about them is going to be a detriment.   
 
A. Stebbins stated that the Commission doesn’t have a cost estimate for a restoration of the 
windows; they have a partial restoration.  He advised that the question is getting an estimate to 
restore the original windows and phase it starting with the most severely deteriorated windows. 
C. Cook advised that they have similar windows on the front side and they have an estimated cost 
to do those so being the same type of windows and configuration he would extrapolate that and 
say it is going to be very expensive.  He advised that the bid for the windows on the front side is 
$50,000 for total restoration.  He advised that they estimated that the restoration would take 2-3 
months noting that they are heading into winter.     
 
E. Wilson questioned if he thought the owner would even entertain the idea of restoration even in 
phasing and C. Cook stated that the cost is an issue.  R. Paglialong stated that the space upstairs 
has been vacant for almost a year and no one is going to want to rent that space with old 
windows. He stated that we have an opportunity for somebody who wants to replace the 
windows. He advised that it is a great idea to preserve the original windows but someone is 
willing to make it better right now and he questioned if they are going to delay having that space 
not being rented because of the windows. E. Wilson stated that she doesn’t think they are 
delaying it and noted that window repairs could have started a year ago or anytime in the last 
decade.  R. Paglialong stated that it’s here and now and advised that if the Commission denies 
having it happen they are going to exasperate the time; nothing will be able to get done by winter.  
E. Wilson doesn’t think nothing can be done and advised that there are some short term repairs 
that can be done to hold them over the winter.  
 
A. Stebbins questioned if C. Cook talked to the owner about the federal tax credits and C. Cook 
advised that the owner is going to look into it.  He stated that the other issue is the impact on the 
lower level tenants and stated that there issues will come back until they get a solution to the 
issues of what is really causing it and everyone feels that it is the windows.  The group discussed 
the water infiltration.  A. Stebbins questioned if it is going to take about eight weeks to get the 
windows and C. Cook stated that they will be here in the middle of November.  A. Stebbins 
stated that there is a real risk that this is going to go into next year, he questioned if in the 
meantime nothing will be done to the windows.  C. Cook advised that they are having a company 
come in to see if they can put a protection on the outside of the front window just for the winter. 
 



    Historic Preservation Commission 
    9/8/14 
    Page 7 of 11 
 
A. Stebbins stated that they are dealing with a building with original windows in it and the 
Commission is charged with preserving original features in the historic district.  He noted that 
they don’t have before them a firm estimate for restoration of windows on the Main St. side.  He 
stated that C. Cook indicated that the owner is looking into the federal historic tax credits and this 
project may qualify along with energy efficiency tax credits both with restoration and with 
replacement windows.  He stated that until he has all of the information in front of him he would 
be erring on the side of restoring the windows.  He stated that as proposed, the impact on the 
surrounding area and the overall historic district would be negative noting that they have to look 
at it from the standpoint of removing original elements from a historic structure.  
 
R. Paglialong stated that the owner is going to choose what is most cost effective and he sees an 
opportunity for the owner to take action.  E. Wilson stated it is at the expense of losing something 
historic in our district.  R. Paglialong doesn’t think that even with the idea of repairing it it’s not 
going to be as cost effective as the other choices.  He is making the assumption that it is going to 
be more expensive and noted that they are also making the assumption that they are historic 
windows.  A. Stebbins stated that they know for a fact, according to Staff, they were put in the 
1920's so they have gained historic stature.  A. Stebbins stated that looking at restoration in 
phasing while stabilizing what they have as they are proposing on the Cass St. side is an option 
that bears looking into.  He stated that until we have exhausted that it’s not possible, he is erring 
on the side of preserving the historic elements of the property. 
 
C. Cook believes the owner would be willing to entertain options on the front side as well and 
submit applications. He reviewed a portion of the quote regarding partial restoration.  He stated 
that they can do the temporary fixes to the worse ones now.  He stated that it allows them the 
opportunity to look at the restoration of the most appealing feature of the windows which is the 
top transoms.  A. Stebbins stated that based on the historic record the windows have gained 
historical significance.  He stated that they don’t have an estimate for a restoration noting that 
they recognize it is a large project and a costly project.  He stated that the owner is committed to 
spending in excess of $32,000 for replacement windows, but noted that we don’t know what the 
total restoration cost would be or if he can avail himself of the historic tax credits, façade 
improvement funds and an energy tax credit.  He stated that without having all the information in 
front of him, he can’t say yes to tearing out historic features of a building. 
 
Motion by E. Wilson, second by R. Paglialong to approve the COA for 112-114 Cass Street to 
replace second story windows on Main Street side and Discussion of future window replacement 
on Cass Street side with the condition that the decorative arch element be preserved and retained 
and if in the process it is damaged or destroyed it will be replicated and put back up in place. 
Ayes: R. Paglialong. Nays: Chairman Stebbins, E. Wilson. Absentees: J. Kurtz-Osborne. 
Abstentions: None. Motioned failed. 
 
E. 116-118 N. Benton Street—Certificate of Appropriateness to replace entry door to upper 
 level and Discussion of future exterior carpeting replacement at entryways  
 
A. Stebbins stated that C. Cook presented this to the Façade Improvement Committee and this 
particular project is regarding the band above the storefront that is deteriorating and leaking 
causing moisture and rot on the front fascia.   
 
C. Cook stated that the design of the flashing allows the caulk to crack and water then goes down 
behind the fascia and deteriorates the inside of the building.  He reported that it was repaired ten 



    Historic Preservation Commission 
    9/8/14 
    Page 8 of 11 
 
years ago and since then it has done the same thing.  He advised that their proposal is to keep the 
current flashing, secure it, caulk it, put a coating on it and then flip a real drip edge underneath 
the existing flashing so that it comes off the face of the fascia board and doesn’t drip down it.  He 
stated that they will replace the fascia board and advised that their contractor is suggesting 
Windsor pine with rot preservative because they have problems with Hardie Board chipping and 
expanding on the ends. R. Paglialong advised that he has seen it and that it starts to delaminate.   
 
E. Wilson questioned how they are going to secure the existing flashing.  C. Cook advised that on 
the backside it is secured to the building but the caulk is starting to break-away so they will re-
caulk on the backside where it meets the brick and on the front side there will be a flashing piece 
put up underneath it and the existing flashing is lipped a ½” over the drip edge. E. Wilson 
questioned if the problem is that the caulk isn’t repaired often enough and C. Cook advised that it 
breaks almost immediately because of the angle of the board that goes up. 
 
E. Wilson questioned if it hits into masonry and C. Cook advised that it does not and noted that 
he is talking about the front edge.  The group discussed the flashing and angled construction of 
the area in question.  C. Cook stated that normally it is plywood which deteriorates first but 
underneath that because the way the board sits you can’t put a bead of caulk that will hold the 
joint together.  He advised that they will put a traditional drip edge that lips out so it will miss the 
whole board as well which is why they don’t have a problem using the Windsor pine.  E. Wilson 
questioned if there are any issues with where it meets the building itself and C. Cook advised that 
if water gets in there it starts to rot the joists behind the whole structure.  E. Wilson stated that the 
water is infiltrating from the front and the sides and C. Cook stated that it is from the front. 
 
A. Stebbins questioned if Windsor pine is pressure treated and C. Cook advised that they can get 
it with a rot type of preservative and noted that it costs the same as Hardie Board.  E. Wilson 
questioned how long it is rated to last and C. Cook advised that it depends on the surface prep 
and how well you maintain it. E. Wilson questioned if the material with the anti-rot treatment is 
better than other pressure treated or rot treated wood.  C. Cook advised that more importantly the 
lip on the top side with the drip edge is going to prevent any water running down so in the future 
the board will get al limited amount of water on it.   
 
A. Stebbins stated that this part of the project is not listed on the COA request and questioned if it 
is an add-on or if it was approved administratively; N. Baker advised that it was approved 
administratively. A. Stebbins stated that C. Cook is just informing the Commission of what is 
happening.  He stated that the request is for the door which is a steel, residential door. He noted 
that there was discussion in the Façade meeting that the owner liked the wood door by Lloyd’s.   
 
C. Cook reported that they got proposals for the door and noted that they were going to replace it 
with wood or steel.  He stated that Marvin Blue Ribbon Millwork quoted based on the Lloyd’s 
door which is a Simpson door.  He advised that it is the same type of a door and advised that 
there are three proposals, one for wood, one for steel and one for fiberglass.  The Commission 
reviewed the quotes.   
 
A. Stebbins stated that the question is which one. C. Cook advised that their request is for a 
fiberglass one which will provide more durability and can be made to look like a wood door stain 
wise. He noted that maintenance is less and advised that a fiberglass door isn’t going to rot.  He 
advised that there is no warranty on a wood door in this location because the overhang is only 



    Historic Preservation Commission 
    9/8/14 
    Page 9 of 11 
 
18”.  He reiterated that they would prefer to go with fiberglass and provided pictures of the 
proposed doors to the Commission.   
 
E. Wilson stated that the historical pictures show a half-light with two panels. C. Cook stated that 
the current door has two vertical panels on the bottom half of the door. The Commission 
consulted the design guidelines for material use and reviewed the photographs to determine the 
panels on the doors. C. Cook stated that they don’t have a preference for panels and affirmed that 
any of the door options could have any configuration of panels.   
 
R. Paglialong stated that in his experience working with exterior doors, he doesn’t like how the 
stain holds up on the fiberglass doors and advised that you have to completely strip it down.  He 
stated that he would do wood because it holds the stain better than fiberglass and it would last 
longer as far as maintaining it.  C. Cook advised that that they can do any one of those options. R. 
Paglialong stated that Lloyd’s door which is a Simpson door is well made.  C. Cook stated that 
Blue Ribbon indicated that about every five years you will have to do maintenance on the wood 
door which has been his experience as well. He stated that their concern is with the traffic flow 
that goes through apartment doors and noted that fiberglass can take a little more abuse. 
 
E. Wilson questioned if there is a significant difference in how often a fiberglass door needs 
maintenance. R. Paglialong stated that to him it seems like a fiberglass door needs more 
maintenance and advised that he would not let anything go more than 5 years but it depends on 
the environment. He has seen uglier looking doors that were fiberglass and noted that in his 
experience there has been more work done on fiberglass doors than on wood doors. He suggested 
that 3-5 years is appropriate for maintenance.  A. Stebbins questioned if the Lloyd’s door is wood 
or fiberglass and R. Paglialong stated that is wood. C. Cook stated that Blue Ribbon’s 
recommendation was fiberglass because the ease of restoring it is a little easier. 
 
A. Stebbins questioned if, whatever door it is, if they are going to paint the door.  C. Cook stated 
that if it is a wood door it will be stained and the other two options would be painted to match the 
façade front or contrast the façade front. A. Stebbins stated that it is a National Registered 
District and there is a wood door at Lloyd’s and next door there are original wood doors. He 
would prefer to see a wood door continued in that location.  The Commission conceded. 
 
C. Cook advised that he couldn’t guarantee it will be a Simpson brand if it is a wood door. A. 
Stebbins stated that if they did the wood door, the idea of the four panels would be the preferred 
type of look on the bottom which matches the Lloyd’s door and honors the historic doors at Tom 
Doherty’s building.  C. Cook advised that he would be receptive to that. 
 
The Commission agreed that the new doors and materials meet the design guidelines and 
improve energy efficiency.  The Commission did the findings of fact and stated that with wood 
doors the impact of the project would be positive for the building, the neighboring buildings, the 
surrounding area and the overall historic district. 
 
Motion by E. Wilson, second by R. Paglialong to approve the COA for 116-118 N. Benton Street 
to replace entry door to upper level with the condition of having a wood door with four panels at 
the bottom and the glass at the top as presented. Ayes: Chairman Stebbins, R. Paglialong, E. 
Wilson. Nays: None. Absentees: J. Kurtz-Osborne. Abstentions: None. Motion carried. 
 



    Historic Preservation Commission 
    9/8/14 
    Page 10 of 11 
 
The group began a discussion regarding the entrances to the building.  A. Stebbins advised that 
three of them are terrazzo type of material and the third one is indoor/outdoor carpeting which is 
deteriorating.  E. Wilson asked what was underneath the carpeting and A. Stebbins advised that it 
is terrazzo. A. Stebbins advised that the owner wants to replace the indoor/outdoor carpeting on 
all entryways and noted that it is an inappropriate material for use in the district.  He advised that 
the owner is looking for some guidance.   
 
R. Paglialong asked if the terrazzo could be repaired and C. Cook advised that is one option they 
are looking at but noted that they haven’t found anyone willing to do it.  He stated that he did get 
a ballpark for quarry tile with a membrane underneath to absorb the crack.   
 
R. Paglialong suggested using an epoxy coating and advised that there is a company in 
Woodstock called Designing Concrete which does a commercial grade epoxy.  C. Cook advised 
that there are a couple of places in town that put covering on tile but it became a maintenance 
issue and it all came off over time.  R. Paglialong advised that they guarantee their product for 
life but he doesn’t know if they would guarantee it going over the terrazzo.  He advised that when 
finished it is 20 mil so it is a thick coating and is very durable.  C. Cook stated that one of the 
issues they have with the two pads on either side of the apartment entry is that they are beveled 
with an incline so they would become very slippery and he would be concerned with the 
enameled paint.  R. Paglialong stated that the stuff he has seen almost looks like terrazzo. 
 
E. Wilson questioned if they are having issues at the joints where the terrazzo is meeting the 
building. C. Cook advised that they can caulk the joints on the bottom side. He advised that the 
value they found with the carpet is that it is rubber backed so the water infiltration through them 
doesn’t occur.  He advised that the entry that is carpeted has been there for more than 15 years 
and there is only one space on the front side that has attempted to come loose. 
 
A. Stebbins advised that it is an inappropriate material in the historic district. He suggested 
exploring R. Paglialong’s suggestion to see if it is a viable option and asked him to come back 
with detailed information.  C. Cook stated that the terrazzo is repairable but would be fairly 
expensive and noted that the fact that is cracking now indicates that the surface below is cracked. 
 
V. OTHER UPDATES 
Nancy Baker reviewed pictures showing the deterioration of the Old Courthouse roof.  She 
reported that they have sent out bids for the front stairs noting that they did spec a railing for the 
Sheriff’s house from a couple of companies willing to forge their own. 
 
A. Stebbins stated that people in the community ask him about the Courthouse and he wondered 
if it would be helpful to post pictures on the City’s Facebook page.  N. Baker stated that she 
discussed that today and she expects to see some on there soon. 
 
N. Baker advised that she had a meeting with the owner 100-108 Benton Street, Jim Prindiville, 
to talk about a project.  She put a couple of photos up for the Commission to review and advised 
that J. Prindiville is thinking about taking out the modern look from the banking area and putting 
in two more traditional fronts.  She stated that before he gets contractors and puts numbers 
together, he is asking for feedback from the Commission regarding the angled look he is want to 
achieve. A. Stebbins advised that it wasn’t published on the agenda and suggested J. Prindiville 
send a sketch via email and then the Commission can give general feedback.    
 



    Historic Preservation Commission 
    9/8/14 
    Page 11 of 11 
 
A. Stebbins referred to an article from the Chicago Tribune regarding the Chicago Motor Club 
building downtown using the federal tax credit and how the program is still on the chopping 
block. He stated that he hopes that City Council is making some inroads in contacting 
Congressman Hultgren and our two senators to advocate for keeping the federal historic tax 
credit noting that if it goes away it is a huge impact on historic preservation as well as a huge 
impact directly in Woodstock with regard to the Old Courthouse. 
 
VI. ADJOURNMENT: 
Motion by E. Wilson, second by R. Paglialong to adjourn to the next regular meeting of the 
Woodstock Historic Preservation Commission. Ayes: Chairman Stebbins, R. Paglialong, E. 
Wilson. Nays: None. Absentees: J. Kurtz-Osborne. Abstentions: None. Motion carried. 
 
Meeting adjourned at 9:50 PM. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
___________________________ 
Dianne Mitchell – City Clerk 



CITY OF WOODSTOCK 
HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION 

SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES 
October 6, 2014 

City Council Chambers 
 
 
 
I.  CALL TO ORDER 
The regular meeting of the Woodstock Historic Preservation Commission was called to order 
at 7:05 PM by Chairman Allen Stebbins on Monday, October 6, 2014 in Council Chambers at 
City Hall.  
 
COMMISSION MEMBERS PRESENT:  Jodie Kurtz-Osborne Rodney Paglialong, 
Chairman Allen Stebbins, Erica Wilson 
 
COMMISSION MEMBERS ABSENT: None 

 
 STAFF PRESENT:  City Planner Nancy Baker 
 
 OTHERS PRESENT: None 

 
II. PUBLIC COMMENT 
There were no comments from the public. 
 
III. GENERAL BUSINESS 
 
A. COA request for installation of stone on front façade of 125 E. Calhoun Street 

 
Jason Szmurlo, owner of 125 E Calhoun Street appeared before the Commission requesting 
approval to install stone on the front of his building.  The stone will extend from the sidewalk 
up 36 inches and will be finished with a natural color limestone cap.  A rotted board at the 
base of the wall on the east side will be removed and stone will be installed instead to give 
the look of a stone foundation.  A sample of the proposed stone was provided.   
 
R. Paglialong asked when the original façade was altered.  N. Baker estimated the front was 
altered in the late 1980s or early 1990s.  The east side was altered in 1996 and the west side 
occurred after that. 
 
Chairman Stebbins questioned where the 36 inch height is measured.  He stated that the side 
walk slopes from west to east.  Mr. Szmurlo stated that the stone will be 36 inches high at the 
east end of the façade.   
 
E. Wilson asked Mr. Szmurlo to clarify how far he intends to wrap the stone around the 
corners.  Mr. Szmurlo stated it will just return the corner.  He can purchase corner pieces or 
they can be cut in the field.   
 
In response to a question from R. Paglialong, Mr. Szmurlo confirmed that the siding meets 
the sidewalk.   
 



Historic Preservation Commission 
10/06/14 

Page 2 of 2 
 

Chairman Stebbins noted that there were a variety of siding materials. Mr. Szmurlo stated   
Hardiboard was used on the front, aluminum siding on the east, and vinyl siding on the west. 
This is how the building was sided when he purchased the building.  
 
Chairman Stebbins noted that the trim boards are flush with the windows and asked what will 
be done to prevent moisture from getting behind the stone.  Mr. Szmurlo said that there will 
be a drip edge or channel installed to direct the water.  
 
In response to a question from E. Wilson, Mr. Szmurlo said that stone sills will be installed 
under the windows. 
 
R. Paglialong asked what the historic significance classification of the building is.  N. Baker 
stated that it is classified as “non-contributing.” 
 
The Commission reviewed and completed the Certificate of Appropriate Findings.   
 
R. Paglialong moved to approve a Certificate of Appropriateness for the work as described 
with the stipulation that the finished corner pieces be used for corner returns.  E. Wilson 
seconded.  All members voted aye and the motion was approved. 
 
B.  UPDATES  
 
In response to a question from R. Paglialong regarding the safety of a second story window at 
112 Cass Street, N. Baker stated that the property owner is removing the window and installing 
another sash temporarily in its place.  The original sash will be kept until a decision has been 
made regarding the restoration or replacement of the windows. 
 
Chairman Stebbins reported that he attended a workshop on historic tax credits and the subject 
of historic tax credits will included on the regular October HPC agenda.  
 
IV. ADJOURNMENT: 
 
Motion by E. Wilson, second by J. Kurtz-Osborne to adjourn the special meeting of the 
Woodstock Historic Preservation Commission. Ayes: Jodie Kurtz-Osborne, Rodney 
Paglialong, Chairman Stebbins, Erica Wilson.  Nays: None.    Abstentions: None. Motion 
carried. 
 
Meeting adjourned at 7:25 PM. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
 
________________________ 
Nancy Baker, City Planner 



 

 

       City of    
               

 
Offi ce  of  the May or                                                            815 .338 .4302  
Dr .  Br ian  Sager ,  Mayo r                                                            815 .334 .2269  
121  W.  Calhoun  St reet                                                                              mayo r@woods tocki l . go v  
Woodsto ck,  I l l ino is  60098                                                                            www.woodsto cki l . go v  
 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
for 

Woodstock City Council Meeting 
November 4, 2014 

 
 
TO:        Woodstock City Council 
 
FROM:  Mayor Brian Sager 
 
RE:        Nomination for Appointment to the Opera House Advisory Commission 
 
 
Colleagues: 
 
By way of this communication, I am requesting approval of the Town Square Players’ request to 
appoint Roger Zawacki as their representative on the Opera House Advisory Commission to serve the 
remainder of the term of the late Char Ulanowski.   
 
 
Respectfully, 

 
Brian Sager, Ph.D. 
Mayor 

http://www.woodstock-il.com/
csmiley
Typewritten Text
November 4, 2014 City CouncilManager's Report 34a



 

…………………… ………… …………………… ………… …………………… ………… …………………… ……..  
 

Adminis tra t ion   ♦    Parks    ♦    Stree t  Mainte nance    ♦    Eng ineer ing  
Sewer  & Water  Conveyanc e    ♦    Water  Treatment    ♦    Wastewater  Treatment  

       City of    
               
 
Department of  Public  Works      815 /338 -6118  ♦  Fax 815 /334 -2263  
326  Washingt on  St reet   awi l son@woods t ock i l .gov  
Woods t ock ,  I l l inoi s  60098   www.woods t ock i l .gov  

 
 

 
To:  Roscoe C. Stelford, City Manager 
 
From:  Alan Wilson, City Engineer 
 
Re: Ordinance Deleting “No Parking During Designated Hours” designation 

from various sections of Blakely Avenue, Muriel Street, Mitchell Street,  and 
Gould Street and adding a “No Parking Place” in front of 327 E. Jackson 
Street. 

 
Date: October 27, 2014 
 
Prior to construction of Woodstock North High School, available student parking within “close” 
proximity of Woodstock High School had become increasingly difficult to find due to the 
number of students who were driving to school.  Students chose to park farther away from the 
school on smaller, narrower residential streets in lieu of utilizing on-site permitted parking.  As 
many of these streets were not constructed to handle the additional traffic generated and the 
space needed for this type of use, access to private residences became more difficult and 
complaints from residents occurred.  In order to control the location and time of allowed parking, 
several more narrow residential streets near the school were designated as “No Parking During 
Designated Hours.”  Parking signs were subsequently installed and students were forced to 
utilize on-campus permitted parking, car pool or be dropped off and picked up each day. 
 
Since the construction of Woodstock North High School, the parking problem appears to no 
longer exist, so the no parking signs are no longer warranted and should be removed. The 
Department of Public Works has discussed this issue with the Police Department and they agree 
that this would be appropriate. 
 
In addition, the McHenry County Federal Credit Union requested that the City designate an area 
in front of their building located at 327 E. Jackson Street as “No Parking” to prevent customers 
from blocking the entrance walkway to their facility. 
 
It is recommended that the attached Ordinance, identified as Document No. 
______________, be approved deleting the “No Parking During Designated Hours” 
designation from both sides of Muriel Street from Stewart Avenue to Highland Avenue, 
both sides of Mitchell Street from Stewart Avenue to Highland Avenue, both sides of Gould 
Street from Stewart Avenue to Ridgeland Avenue and both sides of Blakely Avenue from 
Stewart Avenue to Ridgeland Avenue and adding a “No Parking Place” area in front of 327 
E. Jackson Street. 

rstelford
Approved

csmiley
Typewritten Text
November 4, 2014 City CouncilManager's Report 34b

csmiley
Typewritten Text
1



ORDINANCE NO. 14-O-_______ 
 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE PROVIDING FOR AN AMENDMENT TO THE CITY CODE OF THE 
CITY OF WOODSTOCK, MCHENRY COUNTY, ILLINOIS PROVIDING FOR THE 

REVISION OF CERTAIN TRAFFIC REGULATIONS 
 

 
WHEREAS,  it is an appropriate exercise of the police powers of the City of Woodstock, 

McHenry County, Illinois to regulate and restrict parking and the movement of traffic on City 
streets, and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Woodstock has previously established certain parking 

regulations and designated specific locations as “No Parking During Designated Hours” and “No 
Parking Places” and 

 
WHEREAS, it is necessary and desirable to amend those regulations from time to time 

to delete specific locations as “No Parking During Designated Hours” and “No Parking Places”. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 

Woodstock, McHenry County, Illinois as follows: 
 
Section One. That Title 5, Chapter 3, Section 7 – “No Parking Places” of the Woodstock 

City Code is hereby amended by adding the following location. 
 
Street   Side  From           To 
 
E. Jackson St.  North  162’ west of the         186’ west of the 
     centerline of Seminary        centerline of Seminary 
     Ave.                                     Ave. 
 
Section Two. That Title 5, Chapter 3, Section 7, Paragraph B of the Woodstock City 

Code is hereby amended by deleting the following “No Parking During Designated Hours” 
locations. 

 
Street   Side             From            To 
 
Blakely  East  Forest             Ridgeland 
Gould   Both  Ridgeland           Forest 
Mitchell  Both  Forest            Highland 
Muriel   Both  Forest            Highland 
 
 

csmiley
Typewritten Text
Document No. 1



Section Three. That Title 5, Chapter 3, Section 7, Paragraph B of the Woodstock City 
Code is hereby amended by adding the following “No Parking During Designated Hours” 
locations. 

 
Street   Side  From            To 
 
Blakely  East  Forest            Stewart  
Gould   Both  Forest            Stewart 
Mitchell  Both  Forest             Stewart 
Muriel   Both  Forest            Stewart 
 
         
Section Four.  That all Ordinances or parts of Ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby 

repealed to the extent of such conflict. 
 
 
Section Five.  That this Ordinance shall be known as Ordinance No. ______________ 

and shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage, approval and publication as is 
required by law. 
 
 PASSED by the City Council of the City of Woodstock, McHenry County, Illinois and 
approved by me this 4th day of November, 2014. 
 
 
 Ayes: 
 Nays: 
 Abstentions: 
 Absentees: 
 
 
             
       __________________________________ 
                                   Brian Sager, Ph.D., Mayor 
 
 
Attest: 
 
___________________________________      
City Clerk 



 

 
Woodstock is proud to have been recognized as a 2007 Distinctive Destination  

by the National Trust for Historic Preservation 

       City of    
               
 
Department of  Publ ic  Works                                                  phone 815 .338 . 6118  
326  Washin gton  St reet                                                      fax 815 .334 .226 3  
Woodsto ck,  I l l ino is  60098                                                                j van lan du yt@wood stocki l .go v  
                                               www.woodsto cki l . gov  
To:  Roscoe Stelford, City Manager 
 
From:  Jeff Van Landuyt, Assistant Public Works Director 
 
Re:  Approval of Resolution Pertaining to Maintenance and Improvement 
  Activities by the City of Woodstock within State Highways 
 
Date:  October 27, 2014 
 
The City of Woodstock is a junction for three highways which fall under the jurisdiction of the 
Illinois Department of Transportation (IDOT).  The right-of-way along these routes (IL Route 
120, IL Route 47, and U.S. Route 14) typically includes all property beneath and between the 
public sidewalks.  Although these routes are the responsibility of the State of Illinois, there are a 
number of locally-owned water mains, sanitary and storm sewers, street lights, way-finding 
signs, and landscaping areas within the right-of-way that the City must access and maintain from 
time to time.     
 
The State of Illinois has a permitting process for contractors, public utility companies, residents, 
etc., performing work within the right-of-way along these State routes.  This permitting process 
not only assures that the State has a record of all utilities and local improvements within the 
right-of-way, but it also ensures that IDOT’s standards are being met, in addition to giving the 
State some leverage to see that the area is restored and left in good condition.  A “typical” permit 
application must include a surety bond which IDOT can use to pay costs associated with repairs 
in case the applicant fails to meet IDOT standards or perform adequate restoration in the course 
of completing a project within the right-of-way.  In addition, this permit application and review 
process can take several weeks or even months for approval depending upon the scope of the 
project and the location.   
 
Fortunately, IDOT is aware of and sensitive to the fact that most municipalities have utilities and 
local improvements located within a State right-of-way, and they realize that not all maintenance 
and repair projects can be scheduled in advance or delayed pending individual permit review.  As 
a result, IDOT allows municipalities an opportunity to waive the proof of insurance and bond 
requirements with each application as long as the local government body has agreed to be 
responsible for the liability associated with their work within the State right-of-way.  This waiver 

http://www.woodstockil.gov/
csmiley
Typewritten Text
November 4, 2014 City CouncilManager's Report 34c



 

 
Woodstock is proud to have been recognized as a 2007 Distinctive Destination  

by the National Trust for Historic Preservation 

is in the form of a resolution which must be signed and returned to IDOT stating the City’s intent 
to undertake maintenance of local improvements and utilities within the State right-of-way and 
assume the responsibility for any maintenance work that may result.  This resolution also acts to 
expedite the issuance of permits for City crews to work within the State right-of-way during an 
emergency such as a main break, sewer blockage, street lighting repair, etc.  These agreements 
are valid for a period of two years, and the City’s most recent agreement with IDOT expires on 
December 31, 2014.    
   
Since it is likely that the City will need to make repairs to its infrastructure located along these 
State routes, it makes good sense to renew an agreement with IDOT.  In order to certify the 
agreement, the attached resolution needs to be adopted, signed, and certified by the Mayor and 
City Council.  This resolution does not constitute a blanket permit for all work in the State right-
of-way; a separate application must still be made in each instance.  However, in the case of an 
emergency, it does provide for verbal authority prior to receipt of a written application.   
 
In order to have consideration from IDOT to work within the State right-of-way without prior 
submittal and subsequent approval of a written application, proof of insurance, and a surety 
bond, it is recommended that the attached Resolution, identified as Document No. _______, 
pertaining to maintenance work and local improvements within a State right-of-way 
during calendar year 2015 and 2016 be approved. 
 
c: Mark Miller 
 Shawn Parker 

rstelford
Approved

csmiley
Typewritten Text
2



 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 14-R-____ 
 

A RESOLUTION PERTAINING TO MAINTENANCE AND IMPROVEMENT ACTIVITIES 
BY THE CITY OF WOODSTOCK WITHIN STATE HIGHWAYS 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Woodstock, McHenry County, Illinois, desires to undertake in the years 
2015 and 2016 the location, construction, operation and maintenance of driveways and street 
returns, water mains, sanitary sewer mains, storm sewers, street lights, traffic signals, sidewalks, 
landscaping, etc. on State highways, within the City of Woodstock, which by law and/or 
agreement come under the jurisdiction and control of the Department of Transportation of the 
State of Illinois; and 
 
WHEREAS, an individual working permit must be obtained from the Department of 
Transportation prior to any of the aforesaid installations being constructed either by the City of 
Woodstock or by a private person or firm under contract and supervision of the City of 
Woodstock. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 
Woodstock, McHenry County, Illinois: 
 
Section One.  That the City of Woodstock hereby pledges its good faith and guarantees that all 
work shall be performed in accordance with the conditions of the permit to be granted by the 
Department of Transportation, and to hold the State of Illinois harmless during the prosecution of 
such work, and assume all liability for damages to persons or property due to accidents or 
otherwise by reason of the work which is to be performed under the provision of said permit. 
 
Section Two.  That all authorized officials of the City of Woodstock are hereby instructed and 
authorized to sign said working permit on behalf of the City of Woodstock. 
 
PASSED by the City Council of the City of Woodstock, McHenry County, Illinois, and 
approved by me this 4th day of November, 2014. 
 
Ayes: 
Nays: 
Abstentions: 
Absentees: 

________________________________________ 
Brian Sager, Ph.D., Mayor 

 
Attest:  ______________________________ 
 City Clerk 
 

csmiley
Typewritten Text
Document No. 2



       City of    
               
Department of  Community & Economic Development                     phone 815.338.4305  
121 W. Calhoun Street                                               fax  815.334 .2267 
Woodstock, I l l ino is 60098                          commdevdept@woodstocki l .gov  

                                                    www.woodstockil.gov 
  
   

 MEMORANDUM 
 
DATE:  October 28, 2014 
 
TO:  Roscoe Stelford, City Manager 
 
FROM: Nancy Baker, City Planner 
 
RE: Recommendation for Façade Improvement Funds for 116-120 N. Benton   
 
The attached application for façade improvement funding totaling $1,200 for projects at 116-120 
N. Benton Street is recommended for approval.      
 
Last month, the City Council approved funding for storefront renovations at 116-118 N. Benton.  
The application originally included the installation of new carpet at the entranceways to both 
storefronts and the upstairs apartment.  The Historic Preservation Commission did not approve 
the carpeting and requested the applicant return with a more appropriate material. 
 
The applicant appeared before the Commission on October 27th seeking approval of a surfacing 
material that can be applied over the cracked terrazzo and is easily maintained.  The color will 
coordinate with the new storefront color scheme (a gray or charcoal color).   The Historic 
Preservation Commission granted a Certificate of Appropriateness to use this material on the 
Benton Street entrances as well as on buildings owned by the same property owner on Van 
Buren Street. 
 
 

 

http://www.woodstockil.gov/
csmiley
Typewritten Text
November 4, 2014 City CouncilManager's Report 34d



 
  

 
The applicant has asked the City to consider funding this additional work because it was 
included in the original application, with the exception of the 120 N. Benton entrance.  
 
 
The Façade Program specifies that projects are to be evaluated utilizing the following factors: 
 

Impact of proposed work on preservation of the structure:  The material will seal any 
cracks at the entrances that could lead to water infiltration. 

 
Aesthetic impact:    The new surfacing will enhance the appearance of the entranceways 
and coordinate with the storefronts.    

 
Consistency with announced special emphasis areas (if any):  There are currently no 
special emphasis areas. 

 
Applicant’s demonstrated previous commitment to preservation:  The owner of these 
properties has continually maintained the properties to prevent building deterioration. 

 
Thoroughness of the application:  Required information has been provided.  Two cost 
estimates were obtained. 

 
Equity:  The building owner is currently receiving façade funding for these structures 
and his property on Van Buren Street. 

 
Demonstrated financial capability of applicant:  No financial capability information 
was provided, however, the applicant is a long-time property owner in Woodstock.   
 
Funding availability/feasibility.  Funding would be re-allocated from previously-
approved funds that will not be utilized during this fiscal year. 
 

The Community and Economic Development Department has been advised that the owner of 
112 Cass will only be able to use $7,245 of the $8,750 that was approved for second floor 
window restoration leaving $1,505 which could be allocated to another project.  It is noted that 



the 112 Cass Street owner will be applying for additional funds for window replacement for 
FY15/16.  It is noted that no other applications have been submitted yet this year.    
 
It is recommended that the City Council authorize $1,200 in Façade Improvement funding 
for 116-120 N. Benton for the entranceway resurfacing as approved by the Historic 
Preservation Commission.  
 

rstelford
Approved















 

Memo 
To: Roscoe Stelford, City Manager 

From: Paul N. Christensen, Finance Director 

Date: October 29, 2014 

Re: Resolution Estimating the Property Tax Levy for Tax Year 2014 

Attached is a proposed Resolution that estimates the City of Woodstock’s 2014 tax year’s property 
tax levy.  Illinois Statue requires that the property tax process begins with a Resolution informing 
the public of the estimated property taxes to be assessed and authorizing the City Administration, if 
necessary, to publish the required “Truth in Taxation” or Black Box Notice.  City Council is then 
required to wait twenty days after passage of the Resolution before approving the Property Tax 
Levy Ordinance. 

The Black Box Notice must be published if the property tax levy estimate is equal to or greater than 
105% of the prior year’s extension.  It is important to note that the attached resolution is only an 
estimate and does not represent the actual property tax levy that must be filed by the last Tuesday in 
December.  It is anticipated that the final property tax levy will be considered by the City Council at 
the December 2nd meeting. 

In order to determine the appropriate amounts to levy for tax year 2014, which will be used to fund 
operations in FY15/16, the City Administration first reviewed estimates of new construction 
presented by the McHenry County Assessor’s Office.  Next, each individual Fund was examined to 
determine the appropriate amount of financial support required by the future tax levy. 

As has been the case since 2009, the City’s total equalized assessed value (EAV) is expected to 
again decline.  Including new growth, EAV is expected to decrease in tax year 2014 by 4.2% to 
$416,976,964 from $435,124,970 reported in 2013.  If new growth of $3,114,992 is removed from 
the calculation, then total EAV declines by 4.9%.  This reduction reflects the negative pressures 
continuing to be placed on housing prices.  Please be aware, these are estimates and could change 
when the final figures are released in April, especially as property tax appeals are finalized. 

Illinois State Statute requires all taxing bodies to request specific property tax amounts and not set 
tax rates.  This legislation is based on the State’s belief that local governments should only ask for 
what is needed to finance their operations and should not gain unnecessarily from significant 
increases in property values such as occurred in the early 1990s.  Conversely, this system also 
creates a stable revenue base that local governments can rely on during periods of declining 

Finance Department  
       City of   
                

 

121 W. Calhoun Street  
Woodstock, I l l inois   60098  
815/338-4300 
Fax 815/334-2267 

csmiley
Typewritten Text
November 4, 2014 City CouncilManager's Report 34e



 

property values, since while housing values are declining, the cost of providing local government 
services usually continue to rise. 

In order to cap increases that Non-Home Rule communities can impose on residents, a Property 
Tax Extension Limitation Law (PTELL) was put in place for all collar counties (i.e., DuPage, Kane, 
Lake, McHenry, and Will) beginning with tax year 1991 and Cook County for tax year 1994.  
PTELL limits increases in the tax extension to the lesser of 5% or the increase in the national 
Consumer Price Index (CPI).  A CPI rate of 1.5% has been determined for tax year 2014.  While 
the City is limited to an increase of 1.5% of the prior year’s property tax extension, it is able to raise 
additional funds from new construction.  As was mentioned earlier, preliminary results have this 
new construction figure generating $3,114,992 in new EAV, which translates to an increase of 
$64,834 based on the prior year’s tax rate. 

In addition to limits on the overall property tax amount, there are also rate limits on individual 
property tax line items.  Because of these rate limits, the City is prohibited from realizing these 
additional property taxes within the General Corporate levy line, which is not restricted to any 
purpose, and then transferring this amount to other funds as needed.  Also because of the declining 
EAV, many line items have hit their max tax rate limit, which requires the City to shift these 
amounts to other line items.  For instance, last year the City received $87,025 for the Public Library 
Building and now due to the decline in EAV, this year the max extension is estimated to be limited 
to $83,395. 

Because of this EAV limit, the City has been levying for Street and Bridge.  Street and Bridge is a 
complicated levy line item as it is reduced by what each township levies.  Because of this, the City 
often is unsure of what it will ultimately receive until April.  In order to alleviate this problem, the 
City Administration recommends reducing this amount to $100 and instead increasing the Police 
Protection Levy, which has room under the property tax rate cap.  Since the Police Protection Fund 
receives a large transfer from the General Fund and the Street & Bridge property tax also is reported 
within the General Fund, a reduction in the transfer will be made to offset the increase in direct 
taxes received by the Police Protection Fund resulting in a net zero financial impact on both of these 
funds.   

The reason that the Street and Bridge levy is set to $100 instead of $0 is that if a line item is not 
levied for over 3 years, a public entity losses the ability to levy for it in future years without a 
successful referendum.  Since the City should retain the right to use this levy in the future, especially 
with declining EAV values, a very small tax levy amount has been proposed.  Ultimately, this 
amount will be completely eliminated by the transfer from the townships. 

Currently the City is levying for only IMRF.  This levy is then used to pay both IMRF and Social 
Security benefits.  As has been commented on in our management letter from our auditors, the 
IMRF tax levy should only be used to pay IMRF benefits.  Therefore it is being proposed that the 
IMRF levy be reduced and a new Social Security levy be introduced, which would flow into a new 
Social Security Fund.  Normally Illinois Statue does not allow for a new property tax line item to be 
introduced without a public referendum; however, Public Act 098-1088 states that levies authorized 
under sections 21-110 and 21-110.1 of the Illinois Pension Code, which is where the power to levy 
for Social Security and Medicare is contained, shall not be considered new rates.   



 

Based on directives by City Council to offer residents of Woodstock property tax relief, the City 
Administration is proposing increasing the total tax levy by the amount related to new growth (i.e., 
$64,834) and forgoing the inflationary 1.5% allowed under PTELL.  However since the new 
growth figure is not finalized, it is also recommended that a larger increase to the tax levy be passed 
in December than just one based on the estimated new growth component provided by the County 
Assessor.  Then in April, when the final EAV figures are released, the City Council would hold a 
special meeting if an abatement was required to address any additional taxes generated beyond 
those attributable to new growth.  This process would be similar to the process that was done last 
year in April. 

Since the proposed levy falls below the 5% threshold required by the “Truth in Taxation Act,” even 
with the additional amount included for unforeseen growth, a public hearing will not need to be 
conducted.  In addition, no Black Box Notice will be required to be published. 

Attached to this memo are Attachments A and B along with a proposed Resolution.  Attachment A 
includes the estimated property tax calculations based on the information provided by the McHenry 
County Assessor’s Office.  In addition, a page is included that estimates the property tax bills for 
residents of Woodstock based on specific EAV levels.  Attachment B illustrates the amount of the 
actual levy that is proposed for consideration in December, assuming the City Council agrees with 
the City Administration’s recommendations.  These calculations include an additional $1,000,000 
in EAV, in essence $3,000,000 in additional market value, for new growth beyond the County’s 
estimates.  Since this change will have no impact at the individual resident level for property taxes, 
because any additional amounts will be abated in April if the growth does not materialize, a 
comparison of residential property taxes has not been included. 

Lastly a Resolution Estimating the Calendar Year 2014 Property Tax Levy in Accordance with the 
Truth in Taxation Act has been included.  The figures used to develop this document include the 
impact from the additional $1,000,000 in new growth EAV. 

Recommendations: 

It is recommended that the City Council approve the attached Resolution, identified as 
Document No. _____,  A Resolution Estimating the Calendar Year 2014 Property Tax Levy in 
Accordance with the Truth in Taxation Act (35 ILCS 200/18-60) 

Should you have any additional questions or concerns, please feel free to contact me. 

rstelford
Approved

csmiley
Typewritten Text
3



Attachment A
City of Woodstock

Tax Year 2014 (For FY15/16)

FY14/15:
2013 Equalized Assessed Value (EAV) 435,124,970$            
2013 New EAV Growth 2,632,474                  
2013 Property Tax Extension 9,056,495                  
2013 Property Tax Rate 2.08135%
2013 Property Tax Extension (Excluding Debt Service) 8,394,344                  
2013 Property Tax Rate (Excluding Debt Service) 1.92918%

FY15/16:
2014 Rate of Inflation 1.5%
2014 New EAV Growth - County Assessor 3,114,992                  
2014 Equalized Assessed Value - County Assessor 416,976,964              
2014 New EAV Growth - As a % of EAV 0.7%
2014 Equalized Assessed Value - Appeals - Estimated -                             
2014 Equalized Assessed Value - Final 416,976,964              
2014 Equalized Assessed Value - % Change Compared to 2013 (4.2%)

2014 Proposed Property Tax Extension 9,121,329$                
2014 Proposed Property Tax Extension (Excluding Debt Service) 8,476,307                  
2014 Estimated Property Tax Rate (Excluding Debt Service) 2.0328%
2014 Estimated Dollar Tax Increase - All Inclusive 64,834                       
2014 Estimated Percentage Tax Increase - All Inclusive 0.72%
2014 Estimated Percentage Tax Increase - Due to New Growth 0.72%
2014 Estimated Percentage Tax Increase - Due to Inflation 0.00%

2014 Caused by New Growth 64,834$                     
2014 Caused by Inflation -$                           



Attachment A
City of Woodstock

Tax Year 2014 (For FY15/16)

Proposed
Property Estimated FY13/14 FY13/14 FY15/16

Tax Max Property Property Property
Fund Rate Tax (Tax Year2014) Tax (Tax Year2013) Tax (Tax Year2014) Tax (Tax Year2014)

Number Description Limit Extension Extension Rate Levy
01 General Corporate 0.4375% 1,824,274               1,886,323$               0.26564% 1,107,678$               
02 Municipal Audit None N/A 35,602                       0.00911% 38,000                       
03 Police Protection 0.6000% 2,501,862               1,167,701                  0.58756% 2,450,000                  
04 Crossing Guard Fund 0.0200% 83,395                    40,001                       0.00959% 40,000                       
05 Street & Bridge Fund 0.1000% 416,977                  173,680                     0.00002% 100                            
06 Public Parks 0.0750% 312,733                  326,344                    0.07195% 300,000                    
07 Performing Arts 0.0400% 166,791                  174,050                    0.03837% 160,000                    
08 Public Library 0.6000% 2,501,862               911,204                     0.23579% 983,204                     
09 Public Library Building 0.0200% 83,395                    87,025                       0.00888% 37,025                       
10 Social Security None N/A -                             0.15588% 650,000                     
11 IL. Municipal Retirement None N/A 1,278,201                  0.11991% 500,000                     
16 Special Recreation 0.0400% 166,791                  148,704                     0.03259% 135,900                     
21 Liability Insurance None N/A 693,202                     0.14015% 584,400                     
70 Police Pension None N/A 932,303                     0.22783% 950,000                     
90 Environmental Management 0.2000% 833,954                  540,003                     0.12950% 540,000                     
30 Debt Service None N/A 334,150                     0.07932% 330,750                     
31 Library Debt Service None N/A 328,002                     0.07537% 314,272                     

9,056,495$                2.18749% 9,121,329$                



Attachment A
City of Woodstock

Tax Year 2014 (For FY15/16)

Debt Service Levy Requirements

FY15/16
Ordinance Payment Ordinance Alternate Original Levy
Number Debt Service Issues Amount Date Revenues Issuance Amount

04-O-15 2004 Water & Sewer Refunding - Series F 406,434$            2/3/2004 Yes 3,650,000          -                             
14-O-35 2014 Parks&Streets & Rec Center Refunding 571,000$            5/20/2013 Yes 6,545,000          -                             
14-O-51 2014 Library Refunding - Series A 314,272$            8/19/2014 No 1,135,000          314,272                     
08-O-41 2008 Water & Sewer Bonds - Series A 261,618$            6/17/2008 Yes 3,400,000          -                             
10-O-34 2010 Refunding Bonds - Series A-Pool-Opera 171,565$            6/15/2010 Yes 1,425,000          -                             
10-O-34 2010 Refunding Bonds - Series B-Library 46,080$              6/15/2010 Yes 350,000             -                             
10-O-34 2010 Refunding Bonds - Series C-TIF 161,399$            6/15/2010 Yes 1,475,000          -                             
10-O-34 2010 Refunding Bonds - Series D-Water&Sewer 322,478$            6/15/2010 Yes 2,940,000          -                             
10-O-34 2010 Refunding Bonds - Series E-TIF 31,758$              6/15/2010 Yes 325,000             -                             
13-O-42 2013 Refunding Bonds - Series A-Pool 330,750$            8/20/2013 No 1,825,000          330,750                     
13-O-42 2013 Refunding Bonds - Series B-Police Bld 341,650$            8/20/2013 Yes 1,860,000          -                             

2,959,004$        24,930,000$      645,022$                   



Attachment A
City of Woodstock

FY15/16 Estimated Resident Tax Bill
November, 2014

Home EAV Includes the Impact from the $6,000 Homestead Exemption

FY14/15 Proposed FY15/16
Fund Resident Tax Bill (Tax Year 2013) Resident Tax Bill (Tax Year 2014)

Number Description $150,000 Home $200,000 Home $250,000 Home $142,600 Home* $190,200 Home* $237,700 Home*
01 General Corporate 190.74$                   262.99$                   335.24$                    110.33$                   152.48$                   194.54$                    
02 Municipal Audit 3.61                         4.97                         6.34                          3.78                         5.23                         6.67                          
03 Police Protection 118.10                     162.83                     207.56                      244.03                     337.26                     430.29                      
04 Crossing Guard Fund 4.05                         5.58                         7.11                          3.98                         5.50                         7.02                          
05 Street & Bridge Fund 17.56                       24.21                       30.86                        0.01                         0.01                         0.01                          
06 Public Parks 33.00                       45.50                       58.00                        29.88                       41.30                       52.69                        
07 Performing Arts 17.60                       24.27                       30.93                        15.94                       22.02                       28.10                        
08 Public Library 92.14                       127.03                     161.94                      97.93                       135.34                     172.68                      
09 Public Library Building 8.80                         12.13                       15.47                        3.69                         5.10                         6.50                          
10 Social Security -                           -                          -                            64.74                       89.48                       114.16                      
11 IL. Municipal Retirement 129.27                     178.24                     227.21                      49.80                       68.83                       87.81                        
16 Special Recreation 15.05                       20.75                       26.45                        13.54                       18.71                       23.87                        
21 Liability Insurance 70.09                       96.64                       123.19                      58.21                       80.45                       102.64                      
70 Police Pension 94.29                       130.01                     165.73                      94.63                       130.77                     166.85                      
90 Environmental Management 54.60                       75.29                       95.97                        53.79                       74.33                       94.84                        
30 Debt Service 33.79                       46.59                       59.39                        32.94                       45.53                       58.09                        
31 Library Debt Service 33.18                       45.74                       58.31                        31.30                       43.26                       55.20                        

Total Tax Bill 915.87$                   1,262.77$                1,609.70$                  908.52$                   1,255.60$                1,601.96$                  

* Includes an estimated (4.9%) reduction to Home EAV



Attachment B
City of Woodstock

Tax Year 2014 (For FY15/16) (Higher Estimate)

FY14/15:
2013 Equalized Assessed Value (EAV) 435,124,970$           
2013 New EAV Growth 2,632,474                  
2013 Property Tax Extension 9,056,495                  
2013 Property Tax Rate 2.08135%
2013 Property Tax Extension (Excluding Debt Service) 8,394,344                  
2013 Property Tax Rate (Excluding Debt Service) 1.92918%

FY15/16:
2014 Rate of Inflation 1.5%
2014 New EAV Growth - County Assessor 3,114,992                  
2014 Additional Growth (Safety Net) 1,000,000                  
2014 Equalized Assessed Value - County Assessor 417,976,964             
2014 New EAV Growth - As a % of EAV 0.7%
2014 Equalized Assessed Value - Appeals - Estimated -                             
2014 Equalized Assessed Value - Final 417,976,964             
2014 Equalized Assessed Value - % Change Compared to 2013 (3.9%)

2014 Proposed Property Tax Extension 9,142,142$               
2014 Proposed Property Tax Extension (Excluding Debt Service) 8,497,120                  
2014 Estimated Property Tax Rate (Excluding Debt Service) 2.0329%
2014 Estimated Dollar Tax Increase - All Inclusive 85,647                       
2014 Estimated Percentage Tax Increase - All Inclusive 0.95%
2014 Estimated Percentage Tax Increase - Due to New Growth 0.95%
2014 Estimated Percentage Tax Increase - Due to Inflation 0.00%

2014 Caused by New Growth 85,647$                     
2014 Caused by Inflation -$                           



Attachment B
City of Woodstock

Tax Year 2014 (For FY15/16) (Higher Estimate)

Proposed
Property Estimated FY13/14 FY13/14 FY15/16

Tax Max Property Property Property
Fund Rate Tax (Tax Year2014) Tax (Tax Year2013) Tax (Tax Year2014) Tax (Tax Year2014)

Number Description Limit Extension Extension Rate Levy
01 General Corporate 0.4375% 1,828,649              1,886,323$               0.26999% 1,128,491$               
02 Municipal Audit None N/A 35,602                       0.00909% 38,000                       
03 Police Protection 0.6000% 2,507,862              1,167,701                  0.58616% 2,450,000                  
04 Crossing Guard Fund 0.0200% 83,595                   40,001                       0.00957% 40,000                       
05 Street & Bridge Fund 0.1000% 417,977                 173,680                     0.00002% 100                            
06 Public Parks 0.0750% 313,483                 326,344                    0.07177% 300,000                    
07 Performing Arts 0.0400% 167,191                 174,050                    0.03828% 160,000                    
08 Public Library 0.6000% 2,507,862              911,204                     0.23523% 983,204                     
09 Public Library Building 0.0200% 83,595                   87,025                       0.00886% 37,025                       
10 Social Security None N/A -                             0.15551% 650,000                     
11 IL. Municipal Retirement None N/A 1,278,201                  0.11962% 500,000                     
16 Special Recreation 0.0400% 167,191                 148,704                     0.03251% 135,900                     
21 Liability Insurance None N/A 693,202                     0.13982% 584,400                     
70 Police Pension None N/A 932,303                     0.22729% 950,000                     
90 Environmental Management 0.2000% 835,954                 540,003                     0.12919% 540,000                     
30 Debt Service None N/A 334,150                     0.07913% 330,750                     
31 Library Debt Service None N/A 328,002                     0.07519% 314,272                     

9,056,495$               2.18724% 9,142,142$               



Attachment B
City of Woodstock

Tax Year 2014 (For FY15/16) (Higher Estimate)

Debt Service Levy Requirements

FY15/16
Ordinance Payment Ordinance Alternate Original Levy
Number Debt Service Issues Amount Date Revenues Issuance Amount

04-O-15 2004 Water & Sewer Refunding - Series F 406,434$           2/3/2004 Yes 3,650,000          -                             
14-O-35 2014 Parks&Streets & Rec Center Refunding 571,000$           5/20/2013 Yes 6,545,000          -                             
14-O-51 2014 Library Refunding - Series A 314,272$           8/19/2014 No 1,135,000          314,272                     
08-O-41 2008 Water & Sewer Bonds - Series A 261,618$           6/17/2008 Yes 3,400,000          -                             
10-O-34 2010 Refunding Bonds - Series A-Pool-Opera 171,565$           6/15/2010 Yes 1,425,000          -                             
10-O-34 2010 Refunding Bonds - Series B-Library 46,080$             6/15/2010 Yes 350,000             -                             
10-O-34 2010 Refunding Bonds - Series C-TIF 161,399$           6/15/2010 Yes 1,475,000          -                             
10-O-34 2010 Refunding Bonds - Series D-Water&Sewer 322,478$           6/15/2010 Yes 2,940,000          -                             
10-O-34 2010 Refunding Bonds - Series E-TIF 31,758$             6/15/2010 Yes 325,000             -                             
13-O-42 2013 Refunding Bonds - Series A-Pool 330,750$           8/20/2013 No 1,825,000          330,750                     
13-O-42 2013 Refunding Bonds - Series B-Police Bld 341,650$           8/20/2013 Yes 1,860,000          -                             

2,959,004$        24,930,000$      645,022$                   



 RESOLUTION #: 14-R-________  
 

A RESOLUTION ESTIMATING THE CALENDAR YEAR 2014 
PROPERTY TAX LEVY IN ACCORDANCE WITH 

THE TRUTH IN TAXATION ACT 
(35 ILCS 200/18-60) 

 
 BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the CITY OF 
WOODSTOCK, McHenry County, Illinois, pursuant to the Truth in Taxation Act (35 
ILCS 200/18-60) as follows: 
 

1.) The amount of the levy to be received in Fiscal Year 2015/2016 
covering real estate assessed for the calendar year 2014 in the 
CITY of WOODSTOCK is estimated to be $11,456,124 or a 0.4% 
percent increase to the total amount actually extended or abated for 
the 2013 assessment year of $11,405,037. 

2.) The amount of the levy for operations to be received in Fiscal Year 
2015/2016 covering real estate assessed for the calendar year 2014 
in the CITY of WOODSTOCK is estimated to be $8,497,120 or a 
1.2% percent increase to the amount actually extended for the 2013 
assessment year of $8,394,343. 

3.) The amount of the levy for debt service to be received in Fiscal 
Year 2015/2016, including abatements, covering real estate 
assessed for the calendar year 2014 in the CITY of WOODSTOCK 
is estimated to be $2,959,004 representing a (1.7%) percentage 
change to the amount actually extended, including abatements for 
the 2013 assessment year of $3,010,694. 

 
4.) Since the estimated total levy proposed for calendar year 2014 is 

less than a 5 percent increase, the Truth in Taxation notice and the 
associated public hearing is not required to comply with the Act 
(35 ILCS 200/18-70). 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this Resolution shall be spread upon the 

minutes of the City Council Meeting and that a certified copy thereof be presented to the 
County Clerk of McHenry County, Illinois upon an appropriate occasion. 

 

csmiley
Typewritten Text
Document No. 3



ADOPTED by the City Council of the CITY OF WOODSTOCK, McHenry 
County, Illinois and approved by me this 4th day of November, 2014. 
 
AYES:____________________________________________________ 
 
NAYS:____________________________________________________ 
 
ABSTENTIONS:____________________________________________ 
 
ABSENTEES:______________________________________________ 
 
 
      ________________________________ 
      Brian Sager, Ph.D. 
      Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________ 
City Clerk 
  



 
 

CERTIFICATION 
 
 
I, __________________________, do hereby certify that I am the duly appointed, acting and 
qualified Clerk of the CITY OF WOODSTOCK, McHenry County, Illinois, and that as such 
Clerk, I am the keeper of the records, minutes, and proceedings of the Mayor and City Council 
of said City. 
 
I do hereby further certify that at a regular meeting of the City Council of the CITY OF 
WOODSTOCK held on the 4th day of November, 2014, the attached Resolution was 
passed by the Mayor and City Council. 
 
GIVEN under my hand and seal this _______ day of November, 2014. 
 
 
      _________________________________ 
      City Clerk 
 
 
 
   (SEAL) 
 
 



 

 

       City of    
               
 
Office  of  the City Manager                                                  phone 815 .338 .4301  
Rosco e C.  S te l ford  I I I ,  Ci ty Manager                                                      fax 815 .334 . 2269  
121  W.  Calhoun  St reet                                    c i t yman ager@woodsto cki l . go v  
Woodsto ck,  I l l ino is  60098                                                www.woodsto cki l . gov  
 
 
 
 
TO:  Honorable Mayor and City Council 
 
FROM:  Roscoe C. Stelford, City Manager 
 
DATE:  October 31, 2014 
 
RE:  City of Woodstock/Woodstock Celebrates, Inc. Agreement 
 
 
Councilman Turner has been working with Woodstock Celebrates, Inc. to formulate an 
agreement for Council’s consideration and eventual execution.  The agreement will be 
transmitted to Council at Tuesday evening’s meeting for consideration and approval, with final 
execution subject to review and approval by the City Attorney. 

csmiley
Typewritten Text
November 4, 2014 City CouncilManager's Report 34f


	11-4-14 City Council Agenda
	MINUTES
	10-2-14 Workshop Minutes
	10-21-14 Regular Session Minutes
	10-21-14 Exeuctive Session Minutes

	WARRANTS
	Warrant 3637
	Warrant 3638
	MFT Warrant 538

	MINUTES AND REPORTS
	9-8-14 HPC Minutes
	10-6-14 HPC Minutes

	MANAGER'S REPORT NO. 34
	1. Board & Commission Appointment
	2. Traffic Ordinance
	Document No. 1

	3. IDOT Maintenance Resolution
	Document No. 2

	4. Facade Improvement Program Request
	5. Property Tax Estimate
	Document No. 3

	6. Woodstock Celebrates Inc. Agreement



